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(MARK ONE)
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OF 1934
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OR
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FLORIDA 59-3264661
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(IRS Employer

Identification No.)

1001 EAST PALM AVENUE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33605
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

REGISTRANT�S TELEPHONE NUMBER, INCLUDING AREA CODE: (813) 552-5000

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

TITLE OF EACH CLASS NAME OF EACH EXCHANGE ON WHICH REGISTERED
None None

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:

Common Stock, $0.01 par value

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.    Yes  ¨    No  x

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15 (d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨    Accelerated filer  x    Non-accelerated filer  ¨    Smaller reporting company  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.):    Yes  ¨    No  x

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the
common equity was last sold as of the last business day of the registrant�s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, June 29, 2007, was
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approximately $567,347,352. For purposes of this determination, common stock held by each officer and director and by each person who owns
10% or more of the registrant�s outstanding common stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This
determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant�s common stock as of February 26, 2008, was 40,080,386.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Document Parts Into Which Incorporated
Portions of Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held June 17, 2008 (�Proxy Statement�) Part III

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 3



Table of Contents

KFORCE INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I
Item 1. Business 4
Item 1A. Risk Factors 9
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 15
Item 2. Properties 15
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 15
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 15

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 16
Item 6. Selected Financial Data 17
Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 17
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 30
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 31
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 56
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 56
Item 9B. Other Information 56

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 56
Item 11. Executive Compensation 57
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 57
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 57
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 57

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule 57

SIGNATURES
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

References in this document to �the Registrant,� �Kforce,� �we,� �our� or �us� refer to Kforce Inc. and its subsidiaries, except where the context otherwise
requires.

This document contains forward-looking statements, particularly with respect to Item 1A, Risk Factors, and Item 7, Management�s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (�MD&A�). Additional written or oral forward-looking statements may be made by
Kforce from time to time, in filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) or otherwise. Such forward-looking statements are
within the meaning of that term in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and are
made in reliance upon the protections provided by such acts for forward-looking statements. Such statements may include, but may not be
limited to, projections of revenue, income, losses, cash flows, capital expenditures, future prospects, anticipated costs and benefits of proposed
(or future) acquisitions, integration of acquisitions, plans for future operations, capabilities of business operations, effects of interest rate
variations, financing needs or plans, plans relating to products or services of Kforce, estimates concerning the effects of litigation or other
disputes, as well as assumptions to any of the foregoing and all statements that are not based on historical fact but rather reflect our current
expectations concerning future results and events. For a further list and description of various risks, relevant factors and uncertainties that could
cause future results or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements, see the �Risk Factors� and
MD&A sections. In addition, when used in this discussion, the terms �anticipates,� �estimates,� �expects,� �intends,� �plans,� �believes,� �will,� �may,� �should�
and variations thereof and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
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Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which can not be predicted. Future events and actual
results could differ materially from those set forth in or underlying the forward-looking statements. Readers
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are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements contained in this report, which speak only as of the date of this
report. Kforce undertakes no obligation to publicly publish the results of any adjustments to these forward-looking statements that may be made
to reflect events on or after the date of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unexpected events.
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PART I

Item 1. Business
Company Overview

We are a national provider of professional and technical specialty staffing services and solutions and operate through our corporate headquarters
in Tampa, Florida as well as our 67 field offices, which cover 41 markets throughout the United States and the District of Columbia, and 1 office
in Manila, Philippines. Kforce is a Florida corporation and was formed in August 1994 as a result of the combination of Romac & Associates,
Inc. and three of its largest franchises. Kforce completed its Initial Public Offering in August 1995. Kforce Global Solutions, Inc., one of our
subsidiaries, provides outsourcing solutions internationally through an office located in Manila, Philippines. Our international operations
comprised less than 1% of net service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. We provide our clients staffing services and
solutions through four business segments: Technology (�Tech�), Finance and Accounting (�FA�), Health and Life Sciences (�HLS�) and Government
Solutions (�GS�). The HLS segment includes our Clinical Research, Scientific, Healthcare-Nursing (�Nursing�) and Health Information
Management (�HIM�) specialties, all of which are within the Health and Life Sciences field. While substantial portions of the sales and delivery
functions of our HLS segment, particularly Clinical Research and HIM, are concentrated in the field office located at our corporate headquarters,
substantially all of the staffing services for Tech and FA are sold and delivered through our various field offices. Substantially all GS services
are sold and delivered through contracts with the Federal government where we serve either as the prime or sub contractor through field offices
located in the Washington D.C. metropolitan area.

In addition to the traditional �back office� support services such as payroll, billing, accounting, legal, treasury and tax, which are highly
centralized, our headquarters provides support services to our field offices in areas such as human resources, nationwide recruiting, training,
marketing, and national sales initiatives.

Kforce is focused on providing �staffing solutions� services to our clients, which includes flexible staffing services (�Flex�) and search services
(�Search�).

Flex

We provide our clients with qualified individuals (�consultants�) on a temporary basis when it is determined that the consultants have the
appropriate skills and experience and they are �the right match� for our clients. In order to be successful in this staffing service, our employees
(�associates�) endeavor to: (1) understand and acknowledge the clients� needs; (2) determine and understand the capabilities of the consultants
being recruited; and (3) deliver and manage the client-consultant relationship to the satisfaction of both our clients and our consultants. Proper
execution by our associates and our consultants directly impacts the longevity of the assignments as well as increasing the likelihood of being
able to generate repeat business with our clients.

The Flex business comprised 92.5% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 and is driven by the number of total hours billed and
billing rates. Flex gross profit is determined by deducting consultant pay, benefits and other related costs from Flex revenues. Flex associate
commissions, related taxes and other compensation and benefits as well as field management compensation are included in Selling, General and
Administrative expenses (�SG&A�) along with administrative and corporate compensation. The Flex business model involves attempting to
maximize consultant hours and billing rates, while optimizing consultant pay rates and benefit costs, commissions as well as other compensation
and benefits for our associates. In addition, the Flex model focuses on minimizing other operating costs that are necessary to effectively support
such activities.

Flex revenues also include solutions provided through our GS segment. This revenue involves providing longer term contract services to the
customer primarily on a time and materials basis.

Search

The Search business is a smaller, yet important, part of our business that involves locating qualified individuals (�candidates�) for permanent
placement with our clients. We primarily perform these searches on a contingency basis; thus, fees are only earned if the candidates are
ultimately hired by our clients. The typical structure for search fees is based upon a percentage of the placed individual�s annual compensation in
their first year of employment, which is known at the time of placement. We recruit permanent employees from our Flex consultant population,
from the job boards, our associates� networks and from passive candidates we identify who are currently employed and not actively seeking
another position. Also, there are occasions where consultants are initially assigned to a client on a Flex basis and later are converted to a
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permanent placement (i.e. as an employee of our client), for which we also receive a Search fee. Kforce targets clients and recruits for both Flex
and Search services, which contributes to our objective of providing integrated solutions for all of our clients� human capital needs.
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Search revenues are driven by placements made and the resulting fees billed and are recognized net of an allowance for �fallouts,� which occur
when placements do not complete the applicable contingency period. Although the contingency period varies by contract, they are typically
ninety days or less. This allowance for fallouts is estimated based upon historical activity of Search placements that did not complete the
contingency period. There are no consultant payroll costs associated with the placement and thus substantially all Search revenue increases gross
profit by a like amount. Search associate commissions, compensation and benefits are included in SG&A. Search revenues comprised 7.5% of
revenue in 2007.

Industry Overview

We serve Fortune 1000 companies as well as the federal government, local and regional companies, and small to mid-sized companies. Our
largest ten clients represented 15.7% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007. The specialty staffing industry is made up of thousands
of companies, most of which are small local firms providing limited service offerings to a relatively small, local client base. We believe Kforce
is one of the ten largest publicly-traded specialty staffing firms in the United States, that these ten firms combined have a market share of less
than 24% of the applicable market, and that no single firm has larger than an approximate 7% market share. Competition in a particular market
can come from many different companies, either large or small. We believe, however, that our geographic presence, diversified service offerings
within our core businesses, and focus on consistent sales and delivery that is highly disciplined, provide a competitive advantage particularly
with larger clients that have operations in multiple markets.

The specialty staffing industry is significantly impacted by the state of the economic environment. Based upon the historical evolution of the
economic cycles experienced by Kforce, we believe that times of sustained economic recovery generally stimulate demand for substantial
additional U.S. workers and, conversely, an economic slowdown results in a contraction in demand for additional U.S. workers. We also believe
that Flex demand generally increases before demand for permanent placements increases. In addition, we feel strongly that the Tech, FA and
HLS areas of functional focus will be among the higher growth categories in both the short and long-term. Also, we believe that temporary
staffing will become a higher percentage of total jobs, particularly in the professional, technical and government areas, over the long-term.

During 2006, Kforce executed two strategic acquisitions, PCCI Holdings Inc. and Bradson Corporation, in the Federal government contracting
space, which created the GS segment. We believe that the results of operations in the GS segment will have more stable growth during variable
economic cycles. This is a result of the growth of the Federal agencies that are customers of Kforce such as the Department of Defense and the
Department of Homeland Security, which has been spurred by an increase in the use of outsourced labor by many of these governmental
agencies in order to replace those employees who are reaching the age of retirement.

According to an industry report published in August 2007, the United States temporary staffing industry has shown estimated revenue levels of
$81.8 billion in 2004, $89.4 billion in 2005 and $94.8 billion in 2006 and projected revenue levels of $97 billion in 2007. Of course, no
predictions can or should be made about the general economy, the staffing industry as a whole, or specialty staffing in particular.

In our opinion, the continued positive trends in our operating results, which we believe have been enhanced by the streamlining of our operations
and centralizing certain support functions, have positioned Kforce well for the future. However, there can be no assurance that customer demand
for Kforce�s specialty staffing services will continue to grow. In addition, Kforce has a number of competitors that are increasingly utilizing a
lower-priced staffing preferred-vendor model. Also, many clients are seeking �offshore� solutions, which could negatively impact many of the
Kforce business segments. Finally, the specialty staffing sector is constantly faced with increasing competition for skilled candidates, such as FA
and HLS candidates. Each of these factors, among others, may impact the future growth and profitability of Kforce.

Business Strategy

The key elements of our business strategy include the following:

Focus on Value-Added Services. We focus on providing specialty staffing services and solutions to our clients, specifically in the areas of
Technology, Finance and Accounting, Health and Life Sciences and Government Solutions. We believe, based upon data published by the U.S.
Bureau of Labor Statistics and other sources, that future employment growth may be significant in these sectors. The placement of highly skilled
personnel requires operational and technical knowledge to effectively recruit and screen personnel, match them to client needs, and develop and
manage the resulting relationships. We believe our historical focus in these markets, combined with our staff�s operating expertise, provides us
with a competitive advantage.

Build Long-Term, Consultative Relationships. We believe we have developed long-term relationships with our clients by providing solutions to
their specialty staffing requirements. We strive to differentiate ourselves by working closely with our clients to maximize their return on human
assets. In addition, Kforce�s ability to offer flexible staffing services, coupled with its permanent placement capability, offers the client a
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multi-faceted provider of specialty staffing services. We believe this ability enables Kforce to emphasize consultative rather than just
transactional client relationships.
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Achieve Extensive Client Penetration. Our client development process focuses on contacts with client employees responsible for staffing
decisions. Contacts are made within numerous functional departments and at many different organizational levels within the client. Our
associates are trained to develop a thorough understanding of each client�s total staffing requirements.

Recruit High-Quality Consultants. We place great emphasis on recruiting qualified consultants. We believe we have a recruiting advantage over
those of our competitors that lack the ability to offer candidates flexible and permanent opportunities. We frequently place candidates seeking
permanent employment in flexible assignments until a permanent position becomes available as well as convert temporary candidates into
permanent employees of our client companies.

Encourage Employee Achievement. We promote a quality-focused, results-oriented culture. Our field associates and corporate personnel are
given incentives to encourage the achievement of Kforce�s corporate goals.

Operations Overview

Kforce provides staffing services through the following operating segments:

Technology. The Bureau of Labor Statistics lists computer and data processing services among the fastest growing industries over the last
decade. The shortage of technical expertise to operate the advanced systems that businesses have acquired over the last decade is a major
catalyst contributing to the growth of this segment. Our Tech services focus primarily on more sophisticated areas of information technologies
(i.e., systems/applications programmers, systems analysts, and e-business and networking technicians). The economic slowdown of 2000-2003
significantly affected the willingness and ability of companies to commit capital resources to their technology systems/infrastructure. While our
Tech staffing revenues increased substantially throughout the three years ended December 31, 2007 and we believe that the long-term business
catalysts of technology remain in place, there can be no assurance that spending in the sector will return to the historic levels seen over the last
decade.

Finance and Accounting. Our FA personnel provide both temporary staffing and search placement services to our clients in areas such as
taxation, budget preparation and analysis, financial reporting, cost analysis, accounts payable, accounts receivable, professional administrative,
credit and collections, general accounting, audit services and systems and controls analysis and documentation to support compliance work
under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We believe we have built a reputation for providing qualified finance and accounting
professionals to businesses. Historically, this business segment typically experiences its strongest demand in the months preceding and
subsequent to the end of the calendar year as the result of increased demand for professionals to work on year-end closing and tax-related
assignments.

Health and Life Sciences. Our HLS segment consists of skilled professionals and technical services in the clinical research, health care and
scientific fields. Examples of positions in these categories are: clinical research associates (�CRAs�) for the pharmaceutical industry, and health
care information management professionals and nurses for hospitals. The Scientific specialty group supplies laboratory, research and
development, quality assurance and quality control professionals to a variety of industries. This segment is also characterized by long term
consultant contracts and relationships.

Government Solutions. Our GS segment provides FA and Tech professionals to the Federal government primarily as a prime contractor. We
believe that our proven method for sourcing professional candidates for long-term staffing solutions assignments in combination with the prime
contractor relationships, which were acquired through the Bradson Corporation and PCCI Holdings, Inc. acquisitions, will allow us to pursue
additional opportunities in the Federal government sector. The Bureau of Labor Statistics estimates 50% of Federal government employees and
70% of Federal senior managers will be eligible to retire by 2010, which we believe represents a significant opportunity to Kforce.

Kforce organizes and manages its FA and Tech business units along regional market lines: Atlantic, Eastern and Western markets. Kforce
believes this operational alignment supports a more customer-centric organization, leverages our best leaders, leverages client relationships
across functional offerings and streamlines the organization by placing senior management closer to the customer as well as achieving greater
cost-efficiency. The HLS and GS segments are organized and managed by specialty because of the unique operating characteristics of each
business.

Financial information regarding our business segments is included in Item 8 of Part II.

Acquisitions

Bradson Corporation
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During October 2006, Kforce entered into and closed a Stock Purchase Agreement (the �Stock Purchase Agreement�) by and among Kforce,
Bradson Corporation (�Bradson�), Kforce Government Holdings Inc. (�KGH�), a Florida corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce,
Ronald M. Bradley individually and on behalf of the other shareholders. Bradson was a privately-held company based in Arlington, Virginia,
and was a prime contractor of finance and accounting professional services to the Federal government for over 20 years. Bradson�s primary
customers include the Department of Defense and the Department of Homeland Security. Bradson generated approximately $26 million in
revenues during the 12 months ended June 30, 2006.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, KGH acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Bradson for a purchase price of
$73.3 million (the �Purchase Price�), which was subject to Bradson delivering a minimum of $4 million in working capital at the time of closing.
The cash consideration paid by KGH was comprised of Kforce�s cash on hand and borrowings under Kforce�s credit facility.

PCCI Holdings, Inc.

On January 31, 2006, Kforce acquired PCCI Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (�PCCI�), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the
�Merger Agreement�) by and among Kforce, Trevose Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce
(�Merger Sub�), PCCI, H.I.G. Pinkerton, Inc., a Cayman company, in its capacity as Representative, William D. Pinkerton and Richard J. Quigley.
Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Kforce acquired all of the outstanding stock of PCCI for $63.3 million (the �Purchase Price�) paid in
cash at closing, subject to certain adjustments as provided for in the Merger Agreement. PCCI was a privately held company based in Trevose,
Pennsylvania that, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries (primarily Pinkerton Computer Consultants, Inc.), provided technology staffing
services to commercial clients and the Federal government technology services sector.

As a result of the above acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI, Kforce significantly expanded its presence in providing staffing services to the
Federal government.

VistaRMS, Inc.

On February 1, 2005, Kforce completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of VistaRMS, Inc. (�Vista�), a privately held company
based in Herndon, Virginia, in exchange for 2.3 million shares of Kforce common stock. This transaction was accounted for using the purchase
method. The results of Vista�s operations since the date of acquisition have been included in Kforce�s consolidated financial statements. Vista had
produced revenue of approximately $50 million in technology staffing over the 12 months prior to the acquisition.

Hall, Kinion & Associates, Inc.

On June 7, 2004, Kforce acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Hall, Kinion and Associates Inc. (�Hall Kinion�) and its subsidiaries
in exchange for approximately 5.7 million shares of Kforce stock. Hall Kinion specialized in providing technology and finance and accounting
related talent on a temporary and permanent basis to its customers primarily in the United States. The results of Hall Kinion�s operations since the
date of acquisition have been included in Kforce�s consolidated financial statements. As a result of this acquisition, Kforce expanded its market
presence by adding 18 offices, not including 25 offices that were consolidated with existing Kforce offices. The acquisition also expanded
Kforce�s service offerings in technology and finance and accounting in certain markets.

As a general practice, Kforce does not compile separate results for former acquisitions because these operations have been fully integrated into
Kforce in order to create operational efficiencies. Kforce anticipates continued growth which may be organic and/or through acquisition of other
entities that enhance or expand our existing businesses. We believe that we are positioned to acquire and integrate other businesses that are
strategically beneficial.

Technology

Our focus for Kforce�s technology activities is to improve efficiency and maintain a leveraged platform. Over the past three years, we have
focused on an Enterprise Optimization Program (EOP) to upgrade our back office systems. During 2007 and 2006, we upgraded our human
resources, time collection and billing systems. During 2005, we completed a data center refresh whereby virtually all of the hardware in our data
center was replaced or upgraded with new hardware, which management believes will provide improved service to our corporate and field
operations. We believe that we have successfully integrated Bradson�s, PCCI�s, Vista�s, and Hall Kinion�s technical processes into Kforce�s
processes and have an established a proven methodology for technical integration of future acquisitions.

While we believe our technology systems are adequate to meet our current needs, there can be no assurance that they will not be subject to
system outages or data loss caused by natural or man-made disaster. In addition, Kforce depends on certain third-party vendors whose reliability
we cannot guarantee going forward. One or more of such events could negatively impact our ability to conduct our normal course of business.

Trade Names and Trademarks

The Kforce and OnStaff trade names, and the following trademarks: �Data Confidence,� �DC Vector,� �Data Confidence Vector,� �DC Empower,� and
�DC Method,� are important to our business. Each of these trade names and trademarks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office.
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Governmental Regulation

Staffing firms are generally subject to one or more of the following types of government regulations: (i) regulation of the employer/employee
relationship between a firm and its flexible staff, (ii) registration, licensing, record keeping and reporting requirements and (iii) substantive
limitations on its operations. Staffing firms are the legal employers of their temporary workers. Therefore, staffing firms are governed by laws
regulating the employer/employee relationship such as wage and hour regulations, tax withholding and reporting, social security or retirement,
anti-discrimination and workers� compensation.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive and fragmented specialty staffing services industry within each of our operating segments. Within temporary
staffing and permanent placement services, there are low barriers to entry. There are a number of our competitors that have substantially more
resources than we possess. We face substantial competition from large national firms and local specialty staffing firms. The local firms are
typically operator-owned, and each market generally has one or more significant competitors. We also face competition from national clerical
and light industrial staffing firms, and national and regional accounting firms that also offer certain specialty staffing services.

In addition, many companies utilize Vendor Management Systems (�VMS�) for the purchase of staffing services. Generally, VMS are systems that
allow companies to manage service providers. According to a survey conducted in 2007 by Staffing Industry Analysts, 34% of the Fortune 1000
has VMS installed, up from 27% in 2006, with another 28% planning to do so by the end of 2007. Data shows that larger, more sophisticated
companies are more likely to add VMS. Approximately 46% of companies with at least 10,000 employees currently use VMS, up from 31% in
2006. Typically, VMS providers charge staffing firms 1% to 3% of total service revenues, which are usually recorded by staffing firms as a cost
of services, thereby compressing margins. Kforce�s strategy has been to work with all VMS providers to enable us to provide Flexible Staffing
Services to the broadest customer base possible in the sectors we serve.

In the United States, approximately 110 national competitors operate; and more than 9,500 smaller organizations compete in varying degrees at
local levels. Several similar companies � global, national, and local � compete in foreign markets. In 2007, Kforce�s largest competitors included
Manpower Inc., MPS Group, Inc., Robert Half International Inc., Spherion Corporation, Ciber, Inc., Resources Connection, and CDI
Corporation.

Kforce believes that the availability and quality of personnel, level of service, effective monitoring of job performance, scope of geographic
service, and price are the principal elements of competition in our industry. We believe that availability of quality personnel is especially
important. In order to attract candidates, we place emphasis upon our ability to provide competitive compensation and benefits, quality and
varied assignments, scheduling flexibility, and permanent placement opportunities. Because personnel pursue other employment opportunities
on a regular basis, it is important that we respond to market conditions affecting these individuals. Additionally, in certain markets and in
response to economic softening, we have experienced significant pricing pressure from some of our competitors. Although we believe we
compete favorably with respect to these factors, we expect competition and pricing pressure to continue, and there can be no assurance that we
will remain competitive.

Insurance

Kforce maintains a number of insurance policies including general liability, automobile liability and employers� liability (each with excess
liability coverage). We also maintain workers� compensation, fidelity, fiduciary, directors and officers, professional liability, and employment
practices liability policies. These policies provide coverage subject to their terms, conditions, limits of liability, and deductibles, for certain
liabilities that may arise from Kforce�s operations. There can be no assurance that any of the above coverage will be adequate for our needs, or
that we will maintain all such policies in the future.

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Operations

Materially all of Kforce�s revenues are derived from domestic operations with customers located in the United States for the three years ended
December 31, 2007. One of our subsidiaries, Kforce Global Solutions, Inc., provides outsourcing services internationally through an office
maintained in Manila, Philippines. Our international operations comprised less than 1% of net service revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. There were no international operations during the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Operating Employees and Personnel

As of December 31, 2007, Kforce employed 2,297 operating employees and had approximately 10,000 consultants on assignment (�Flexible
Consultants�) providing flexible staffing services to our clients. Flexible Consultants are primarily individuals who are employed directly by
Kforce (�Flexible Employees�) representing approximately 67% of Flexible Consultants; the balance are individuals who are employed by other
entities (�Independent Contractors�) that provide their employees to Kforce for assignment to its clients. As the employer, Kforce is responsible
for the operating employees� and Flexible Employees� payrolls and the employer�s share of applicable social security taxes (FICA), Federal and
state unemployment taxes, workers� compensation insurance, and other direct labor costs relating to our employees. We offer access to various
health, life and disability insurance programs and other benefits for operating employees and Flexible Employees. We have no collective
bargaining agreements covering any of our operating employees or Flexible Employees, have never experienced any material labor disruption,
and are unaware of any current efforts or plans to organize any of our employees.

Availability of Reports and Other Information

We make available, free of charge, through the Investor Relations page on our website, and by responding to requests addressed to our Senior
Vice President�Investor Relations, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A and amendments to those materials filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically submit such materials to the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Our corporate website address is http://www.kforce.com. The information contained on our website, or on other websites linked to
our website, is not part of this document. In addition, the Commission�s website is http://www.sec.gov. The Commission makes available on its
website, free of charge, reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, such as us, that file electronically
with the Commission. Information provided on our website or on the Commission�s website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Kforce may not be able to recruit and retain qualified personnel.

Kforce depends upon the abilities of its staff to attract and retain personnel, particularly technical, professional and cleared Government
personnel, who possess the skills and experience necessary to meet the staffing requirements of our clients. We must continually evaluate and
upgrade our base of available qualified personnel to keep pace with changing client needs and emerging technologies. We expect competition
for individuals with proven technical or professional skills for the foreseeable future. If qualified personnel are not available to us in sufficient
numbers and upon economic terms acceptable to us, it could have a material detrimental effect on our business.

Kforce�s success depends upon retaining the services of its management team and key operating employees.

Kforce is highly dependent on its management team and expects that continued success will depend largely upon their efforts and abilities. The
loss of the services of any key executive for any reason could have a material adverse effect upon Kforce. Success also depends upon our ability
to identify, develop, and retain qualified operating employees; particularly management, client servicing, and candidate recruiting employees.
Kforce expends significant resources in the recruiting and training of its employees, as the pool of available applicants for these positions is
limited. The loss of some of our key operating employees could have an adverse effect on our operations, including our ability to establish and
maintain client and candidate, professional and technical relationships.

Significant increases in payroll-related costs could adversely affect Kforce�s business.

Kforce is required to pay a number of Federal, state, and local payroll and related costs, including unemployment taxes, workers� compensation
and insurance premiums and claims, FICA, and Medicare, among others, for our employees. Significant increases in the effective rates of any
payroll-related costs would likely have a material adverse effect upon Kforce. Costs could also increase as a result of health care reforms or the
possible imposition of additional requirements and restrictions related to the placement of personnel. Recent Federal and state legislative
proposals have included provisions extending health insurance benefits to personnel who currently do not receive such benefits. We may not be
able to increase the fees charged to our clients in a timely manner and in a sufficient amount to cover increased costs, if any such proposals are
adopted.

9

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 16



Table of Contents

Kforce faces significant employment liability risk.

Kforce employs and places people in the workplaces of other businesses. Many of these employees have access to client information systems
and confidential information. An inherent risk of such activity includes possible claims of errors and omissions, intentional misconduct, misuse
or misappropriation of client intellectual property, proprietary information, funds or other property, discrimination and harassment, employment
of illegal aliens, criminal activity, torts or other claims. Such claims may result in negative publicity, injunctive relief, payment by Kforce of
monetary damages or fines, or other material adverse effects upon our business. Moreover, we could be held responsible for the actions at a
workplace of persons not under our immediate control. To reduce our exposure, we maintain insurance coverage for professional malpractice
liability, fidelity, employment practices liability and general liability; in sufficient amounts and with deductibles that we believe are appropriate
for our operations. Our insurance coverage, however, may not cover all claims against us or continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost. In
addition, we face various employment-related risks not covered by insurance, such as wage and hour laws and employment tax responsibility.

Significant legal actions could subject Kforce to substantial uninsured liabilities.

Professional service providers are subject to legal actions alleging malpractice and other legal theories. These actions may involve large claims
and significant defense costs. In addition, we may be subject to claims related to torts, intentional acts or crimes committed by our full-time
employees or temporary staffing personnel. In some instances, we are contractually obligated to indemnify clients against such risks. A failure of
any of our employees or personnel to observe the applicable standard of care, relevant Kforce or client policies and guidelines, or applicable
Federal, state or local laws, rules and regulations could result in negative publicity, payment of fines or significant damage awards or settlement
expense. To reduce our exposure, we maintain professional malpractice liability insurance, fidelity insurance and general liability insurance
coverage in amounts and with deductibles that we believe are appropriate for our operations. Our insurance coverage, however, may not cover
all claims against us or continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost.

If Kforce becomes subject to material liabilities under our self-insured programs, our financial results may be adversely affected.

Kforce provides workers� compensation coverage through a program that is partially self-insured. In addition, we provide medical coverage to
our employees through a partially self-insured program. If we become subject to substantial uninsured workers� compensation or medical
coverage liabilities, our financial results may be adversely affected.

Kforce may not be able to maintain sufficient cash flow or borrowing capacity to support operations.

Kforce�s liquidity may be adversely impacted by covenants in our Credit Facility. On October 2, 2006, Kforce entered into a Second Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America, N.A. (�The Credit Facility�). Under the Credit Facility, Kforce
increased its indebtedness under its existing $100 million revolving credit facility. Kforce�s maximum borrowings under the Credit Facility are
now limited to $140 million, including a revolving loan tranche of up to $125 million (the �Revolving Loan Amount�) and a $15 million sub-limit
for letters of credit. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable less certain minimum availability
reserves. Under the Credit Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio requirements. The
Credit Facility expires during November 2011.

At no time during the existence of the Credit Facility have we ever failed to meet the minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio
requirements. If we did not comply with these financial covenants, such a breach of the Credit Facility could materially adversely affect our
liquidity and financial condition and could result, among other things, in the acceleration of all amounts borrowed under the Credit Facility. See
the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Adverse results in tax audits could result in significant cash expenditures or exposure to unforeseen liabilities.

Kforce is subject to periodic Federal, state and local tax audits for various tax years. Although Kforce attempts to comply with all taxing
authority regulations, adverse findings or assessments made by the taxing authorities as the result of an audit could have a material adverse
affect on Kforce.

Kforce depends on the proper functioning of its information systems.

Kforce is dependent on the proper functioning of information systems in operating its business. Critical information systems are used in every
aspect of Kforce�s daily operations; most significantly, in the identification and matching of staffing resources to client assignments and in the
customer billing and consultant payment functions. Kforce�s information systems are protected through physical and software safeguards
including the use of a third-party data processing center. However, Kforce and its systems are still vulnerable to natural disasters (we are
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headquartered in a hurricane-prone area), fire, terrorist acts, power loss, telecommunications failures, physical or software break-ins, computer
viruses and similar events. If our critical information systems fail or are otherwise unavailable, we would have to accomplish these functions
manually, which could temporarily impact our ability to identify business opportunities quickly, to maintain billing and payroll records reliably,
and to bill for services efficiently. In addition, we depend on third-party vendors for certain functions whose future performance and reliability
we cannot warrant.
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Due to inherent limitations, there can be no assurance that our system of disclosure and internal controls and procedures will be
successful in preventing all errors and fraud, or in making all material information known in a timely manner to management.

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and internal controls will prevent all errors and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within Kforce have been detected. These inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management
override of the control.

The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, a control may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

The addition of offices and entry into new geographic markets may not occur on a timely basis or achieve anticipated financial results.

Kforce�s growth depends in part on our ability to enter new vertical or geographic markets successfully. This expansion is dependent on a
number of factors, including our ability to:

� develop, recruit and maintain a base of qualified professionals within a new geographic market;

� initiate, develop and sustain corporate client relationships in each new vertical or geographic market;

� attract, hire, integrate and retain qualified sales and sales support employees; and

� accurately assess the demand in a new market.
The addition of new offices and entry into new vertical or geographic markets typically result in increases in operating expenses, primarily due
to increased employee headcount. Expenses are incurred in advance of forecasted revenue, and there is typically a delay before our new
employees reach full productivity. Additionally, demand for our services in new markets that we enter might also be less than we anticipate. If
we are unable to enter new vertical or geographic markets in a cost-effective manner or if demand for our services in new markets does not meet
or exceed our forecasts, our business, operating results and financial condition could be negatively impacted. Historically, we have closed and
consolidated offices to improve efficiency, and further closures or consolidation may occur depending on market and competitive conditions.

Our business is dependent upon maintaining our reputation, our relationships and our performance.

The reputation and relationships that we have established and currently maintain with our customers is important to maintaining existing
business and identifying new business. If our reputation or relationships were damaged, it could have a material adverse impact. In addition, if
our performance does not meet expectations, our revenue and operating results could be materially harmed.

We rely on short-term contracts with most of our clients.

Because long-term contracts are not a significant part of our business, other than our GS segment, future results cannot be reliably predicted by
considering past trends or extrapolating past results. Further, our reliance on short-term contracts exerts continued pressure on us when we try to
renew contracts with existing clients who may seek better terms at each renewal.
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Kforce�s current market share may decrease as a result of limited barriers to entry for new competitors and discontinuation of clients
outsourcing their staffing needs.

Kforce faces significant competition in the markets we serve, and there are limited barriers to entry for new competitors. The competition among
staffing services firms is intense. Kforce competes for potential clients with providers of outsourcing services, systems integrators, computer
systems consultants, temporary personnel agencies, search firms and other providers of staffing services. A number of our competitors possess
substantially greater resources than we do. From time to time, we experience significant pressure from our clients to reduce price levels. During
these periods, we may face increased competitive pricing pressures and may not be able to recruit the personnel necessary to fill our clients�
needs. We also face the risk that certain of our current and prospective clients will decide to provide similar services internally. There can be no
assurance that we will continue to successfully compete.
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Competition for acquisition opportunities may restrict Kforce�s future growth by limiting our ability to make acquisitions at reasonable
valuations.

Kforce�s business strategy includes increasing market share and presence in the staffing industry through strategic acquisitions of companies that
complement or enhance our business. We have historically faced competition for acquisitions. In the future, this could limit our ability to grow
through acquisitions or could raise the prices of acquisitions and make them less accretive or possibly non-accretive to us. In addition, Kforce
may be limited by its ability to obtain financing to consummate desirable acquisitions.

Kforce may face significant risk arising from acquisitions.

Kforce may face difficulties integrating acquisitions into existing operations and acquisitions may be unsuccessful, involve significant cash
expenditures or expose Kforce to unforeseen liabilities.

Kforce continually evaluates opportunities to acquire staffing companies that complement or enhance our business and frequently has
preliminary acquisition discussions with some of these companies.

These acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:

� potential loss of key employees or clients of acquired companies;

� difficulties integrating acquired personnel and distinct cultures into a single business;

� diversion of management attention from existing operations; and

� assumption of liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies.
These acquisitions may also involve significant cash expenditures, debt incurrence, integration expenses and exposure to unforeseen liabilities
that could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Any acquisition may ultimately have a
negative impact on our business and financial condition.

Our �offshore� outsourcing solutions are limited.

Many staffing customers are now seeking an �offshore� solution to support their technology and business process function and, as a result, a
significant amount of technology and financial staffing may be replaced by �offshore� resources. Prior to January 31, 2006, we did not provide an
�offshore� program. Following the acquisition of PCCI on January 31, 2006, we now provide a limited technology staffing solution through a
location in the Philippines to certain clients whose contracts were acquired in conjunction with the acquisition of PCCI. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against other �offshore� solution providers or that we will not lose significant market share
and revenue.

We do not provide a Vendor Management System (�VMS�) solution.

Many staffing customers are seeking to consolidate their use of staffing services through the use of VMS solutions. Kforce provides consultants
to these clients through other staffing companies who utilize a VMS solution, but we do not currently provide this service directly to our clients.
There can be no assurance that we can continue to effectively compete with those companies that provide a VMS solution.

Currently, Kforce is unable to recruit enough nurses to meet our clients� demands for nurse staffing services, limiting the potential
growth of our healthcare staffing business.

Kforce relies on its ability to attract, develop, and retain nurses and other healthcare personnel who possess the skills, experience and licensure
necessary to meet the specified requirements of our healthcare staffing clients. We compete for healthcare staffing personnel with other
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temporary healthcare staffing companies, as well as actual and potential clients. Currently, there is a shortage of qualified nurses in most areas of
the United States and competition for nursing personnel is increasing. At this time, we do not have enough nurses to meet our clients� demands
for our nurse staffing services. This shortage of nurses limits Kforce�s ability to grow our healthcare staffing business. Furthermore, we believe
that the aging of the existing nurse population and declining enrollments in nursing schools will result in further competition for qualified
nursing personnel. We have been able to mitigate this shortage by recruiting foreign nurses to work for us in the United States and we currently
rely, to a significant degree, on foreign nurses to supply nursing services to our healthcare customers. However, federal immigration policy is
uncertain and may limit or eliminate our ability to recruit foreign nurses in the future, which may materially adversely affect our nurse staffing
revenue.

Decreases in patient occupancy at healthcare clients� facilities may adversely affect the profitability of Kforce�s business.

Demand for temporary healthcare staffing services is significantly affected by the general level of patient occupancy at healthcare clients�
facilities. When a hospital�s occupancy increases, temporary employees are often added before full-time employees are hired. As occupancy
decreases, clients may reduce their use of temporary employees before undertaking layoffs of their regular employees. Kforce may also
experience more competitive pricing pressure during periods of occupancy downturn. This reduction in occupancy could adversely affect the
demand for services and Kforce�s profitability.
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Future changes in reimbursement trends could hamper our clients� ability to pay Kforce.

Many of Kforce�s healthcare clients are reimbursed under the Federal Medicare program and state Medicaid programs for the services they
provide. In recent years, Federal and state governments have made significant changes in these programs that have reduced government rates. In
addition, insurance companies and managed care organizations seek to control costs by requiring that healthcare providers, such as hospitals,
discount their services in exchange for exclusive or preferred participation in their benefit plans. Future Federal and state legislation or evolving
commercial reimbursement trends may further reduce, or change conditions for, our clients� reimbursement. Limitations on reimbursement could
reduce our clients� cash flow, hampering their ability to pay us. This situation could have a significant impact on our cash flow.

Provisions in Kforce�s articles and bylaws and under Florida law may have certain anti-takeover effects.

Kforce�s articles of incorporation and bylaws and Florida law contain provisions that may have the effect of inhibiting a non-negotiated merger
or other business combination. In particular, our articles of incorporation provide for a staggered board of directors and permit the removal of
directors only for cause. Additionally, management may issue up to 15 million shares of preferred stock, and fix the rights and preferences
thereof, without a further vote of the shareholders. In addition, certain of our officers and managers have employment agreements containing
certain provisions that call for substantial payments to be made to such employees in certain circumstances upon a change in control. Certain of
these provisions may discourage a future acquisition of Kforce, including an acquisition in which shareholders might otherwise receive a
premium for their shares. As a result, shareholders who might desire to participate in such a transaction may not have the opportunity to do so.
Moreover, the existence of these provisions may have a depressive effect on the market price of our common stock.

Kforce�s stock price may be volatile.

Kforce�s common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol �KFRC.� The market price of our stock has fluctuated
substantially in the past and could fluctuate substantially in the future, based on a variety of factors, including our operating results, changes in
general conditions in the economy, the financial markets, the employment services industry, or other developments affecting us, our clients, or
our competitors; some of which may be unrelated to our performance.

In addition, the stock market in general, especially the NASDAQ Global Select Market tier, along with market prices for staffing companies, has
experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. These broad market and industry
fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating results.

Among other things, volatility in our stock price could mean that investors will not be able to sell their shares at or above the prices that they
pay. The volatility also could impair our ability in the future to offer common stock as a source of additional capital or as consideration in the
acquisition of other businesses.

Kforce may be adversely affected by government regulation of the staffing business.

Our business is subject to regulation and licensing in many states. While we have had no material difficulty complying with regulations in the
past, there can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to obtain all necessary licenses or approvals or that the cost of compliance will
not prove to be material. If we fail to comply, such failure could materially adversely affect Kforce�s financial results.

Kforce may be adversely affected by government regulation of the workplace.

Part of our business entails employing individuals on a temporary basis and placing such individuals in clients� workplaces. Increased
government regulation of the workplace or of the employer-employee relationship could have a material adverse affect on Kforce.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR GOVERNMENT BUSINESSES

In 2006, Kforce acquired PCCI and Bradson. These two acquisitions were merged during 2007 into Kforce Government Solutions (�KGS�). KGS
is substantially dedicated to contracting with and serving U.S. Federal government agencies (hereafter �Federal agency business�). Federal
contractors, including KGS, face a number of risks, including the following:

Our failure to comply with complex procurement laws and regulations could cause us to lose business, incur additional costs, and
subject us to a variety of penalties.
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We must comply with complex laws and regulations relating to the formation, administration, and performance of Federal government contracts.
These laws and regulations create compliance risk and affect how we do business with our Federal agency clients, and may impose added costs
on our business.
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If a government review or investigation uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and
administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, harm to our reputation, suspension of payments, fines, and
suspension or debarment from doing business with Federal government agencies. The government may in the future reform its procurement
practices or adopt new contracting rules and regulations, including cost accounting standards, that could be costly to satisfy or that could impair
our ability to obtain new contracts. A failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in contract termination, price or fee
reductions, or suspension or debarment from contracting with the Federal government, each of which could lead to a material reduction in our
revenue, cash flows and operating results.

Unfavorable government audit results could force us to refund previously recognized revenues and could subject us to a variety of
penalties and sanctions.

Federal agencies can audit and review our performance on contracts, pricing practices, cost structure, and compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and standards. An audit of our work, including an audit of work performed by companies Kforce has acquired or may acquire, or
subcontractors we have hired or may hire, could force us to refund previously recognized revenues.

If a government audit uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions,
including termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, fines, and suspension or debarment from doing business with
U.S. Federal government agencies. In addition, we could suffer serious harm to our reputation if allegations of impropriety were made against
us, whether or not true.

If we were suspended or debarred from contracting with the Federal government generally or with any specific agency, if our reputation or
relationships with government agencies were impaired, or if the government otherwise ceased doing business with us or significantly decreased
the amount of business with us, our revenue, cash flows and operating results would be materially adversely affected.

Our Federal agency business is dependent upon maintaining our reputation, our relationships and our performance.

The reputation and relationships that we have established and currently maintain with government personnel and agencies are important to
maintaining existing business and identifying new business. If our reputation or relationships were damaged, it could have a material adverse
impact. In addition, if our performance does not meet agency expectations, our revenue and operating results could be materially harmed.

Competition is intense in the Federal agency business.

There is often intense competition to win Federal agency contracts. If we are unable to successfully compete for new business or win
competitions to maintain existing business, our revenue growth and margins may decline. Many of our competitors are larger and have greater
resources than we do, larger client bases, and greater brand recognition. Our larger competitors also may be able to provide clients with different
or greater capabilities or benefits than we can provide.

Loss of our General Services Administration (�GSA�) schedule contracts or other contracting vehicles would impair our ability to win
new business.

GSA schedule contracts constitute a significant percentage of revenue from our Federal agency clients. If we were to lose one or more of these
contracts or other contracting vehicles, we could lose revenue and our operating results could be adversely affected. These contracts typically
have an initial term with multiple options that may be exercised by our government agency clients to extend the contract for successive periods
of one or more years. We can provide no assurance that our clients will exercise these options.

Our failure to obtain and maintain necessary security clearances may limit our ability to perform classified work for government
clients, which could cause us to lose business.

Some government contracts require us to maintain facility security clearances and require some of our employees to maintain individual security
clearances. If our employees lose or are unable to timely obtain security clearances, or we lose a facility clearance, a government agency client
may terminate the contract or decide not to renew it upon its expiration.

Our employees may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, which could harm our business.
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Like all government contractors, we are exposed to the risk that employee fraud or other misconduct could occur. Misconduct by our employees
could include intentional failures to comply with Federal government procurement regulations, engaging in unauthorized activities, seeking
reimbursement for improper expenses or falsifying time records. Employee misconduct could also involve the improper use of our clients�
sensitive or classified information, which could result in regulatory sanctions against us and serious harm to our reputation. It is not always
possible to deter employee misconduct, and precautions to prevent and detect this activity may not be effective in controlling such risks or
losses, which could adversely affect our business.
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Security breaches in sensitive government systems could result in loss of our clients and cause negative publicity.

Many of the systems we develop, install, and maintain involve managing and protecting information used in intelligence, national security, and
other sensitive or classified government functions. A security breach in one of these systems could cause serious harm to our business, damage
our reputation, and prevent us from being eligible for further work on sensitive or classified systems for Federal government clients. We could
incur losses from such a security breach that could exceed the policy limits under our insurance. Damage to our reputation or limitations on our
eligibility for additional work resulting from a security breach in one of our systems could materially reduce our revenue.

Changes in the spending policies or budget priorities of the Federal government could cause us to lose revenue.

Changes in Federal government fiscal or spending policies could adversely affect our government agency business.

The failure by Congress to approve budgets on a timely basis for the Federal agencies we support could delay or reduce spending and
cause us to lose revenue.

On an annual basis, Congress must approve budgets that govern spending by each of the Federal agencies we support. When Congress is unable
to agree on budget priorities and is unable to pass the annual budget on a timely basis, Congress typically enacts a continuing resolution. A
continuing resolution allows government agencies to operate at spending levels approved in the previous budget cycle. When government
agencies must operate under a continuing resolution, it may delay funding we expect to receive from clients on work we are already performing
and will likely result in any new initiatives being delayed, and potentially cancelled.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
We lease our corporate headquarters in Tampa, Florida, which is approximately 128,000 square feet of space, under a 15-year lease arrangement
that is up for renewal in September 2016. Leases for our field offices, which are located throughout the United States, range from three to
five-year terms although there are a few month-to-month arrangements and one ten-year lease term. We also lease approximately 5,000 square
feet of space in the Philippines.

Although additional field offices may be established based on the requirements of our operations, we believe that our facilities are adequate for
our current needs and we do not expect to materially expand our facilities in the foreseeable future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In the ordinary course of business, we are, from time to time, threatened with litigation or named as a defendant in various lawsuits and
administrative proceedings, including workers� compensation claims, discrimination claims, restrictive covenant disputes, service related disputes
and other claims. We maintain liability insurance in such amounts and with such coverage and deductibles as management believes are
reasonable. The principal risks that we insure against are workers� compensation, personal injury, property damage, professional malpractice,
errors and omissions, employment practices liability and fidelity losses.

We are not aware of any pending legal proceedings that are likely to have a material adverse impact on Kforce.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol �KFRC.� The following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the high and low closing sale prices of our common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. These prices represent
inter-dealer quotations without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and may not represent actual transactions.

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2007
High $ 14.58 $ 16.49 $ 16.98 $ 13.80
Low $ 12.25 $ 13.32 $ 12.62 $ 9.39
2006
High $ 13.18 $ 16.20 $ 15.19 $ 14.97
Low $ 11.28 $ 12.74 $ 10.10 $ 12.07

On February 25, 2008, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $8.37 per share.

Holders of Common Stock

On February 25, 2008, there were approximately 235 holders of record.

Dividends

Since our initial public offering in 1995, Kforce has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock and has no current intention to do so.
Kforce is not restricted under its currently existing Credit Facility from paying dividends.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information about our common stock that may be issued under all of our existing equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2007:

Plan Category

Number of Securities

to be Issued Upon

Exercise of

Outstanding Options,

Warrants, Rights and

Restricted Stock

Awards
(a)

Weighted Average

Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,

Warrants, Rights and

Restricted Stock

Awards
(b) (1)

Number of

Securities

Remaining Available

for Future Issuance

Under

Equity Compensation

Plans (excluding

securities reflected in

column (a)) (2)
(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 4,674,142 $ 11.15 6,284,655

(1)
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The weighted average exercise price excludes outstanding performance accelerated restricted stock (�PARS�) and restricted stock (�RS�) as
there is no exercise price associated with these awards.

(2) The following sets forth the number of shares of common stock and the name of the plan for which shares of common stock remain
available for future issuance under our equity compensation plans (excluding securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options,
warrants, rights and restricted stock awards included in column (a)): 4,255,423 shares of common stock under the Kforce Inc. 1999
Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 2,029,232 shares of common stock under the Kforce Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

During our fiscal fourth quarter ended December 31, 2007, we made no repurchases of our common stock. However, as of December 31, 2007,
approximately $14.8 million was available for stock repurchases under the current stock repurchase program authorized by our Board of
Directors. See the �Liquidity and Capital Resources� section of Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations for more detail and for additional information regarding repurchases of common stock subsequent to December 31, 2007.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with the
information within �Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.�

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
Net service revenues (1) $ 1,036,915 $ 938,448 $ 802,265 $ 661,451 $ 495,585
Gross profit (1) 372,343 326,099 259,989 203,884 153,968
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) 286,369 257,187 212,724 185,488 142,915
Depreciation and amortization (2) 14,487 11,552 8,283 5,221 4,371
Other expense, net (3) 5,039 4,354 1,816 1,701 1,214
Income before income taxes 66,448 53,006 37,166 11,474 5,468
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (4) 26,081 20,487 14,845 (13,537) 350
Net income $ 40,367 $ 32,519 $ 22,321 $ 25,011 $ 5,118
Earnings per share-basic $ 0.98 $ 0.81 $ 0.58 $ 0.73 $ 0.17
Earnings per share-diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.77 $ 0.55 $ 0.69 $ 0.16
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic (5) 41,308 40,189 38,527 34,125 30,514
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted (5) 42,294 42,012 40,616 36,091 31,231

AS OF DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(IN THOUSANDS)
Working capital (3) $ 95,348 $ 64,425 $ 92,539 $ 24,829 $ 40,784
Total assets $ 476,136 $ 442,618 $ 324,746 $ 273,195 $ 160,317
Total long-term debt (3) $ 53,000 $ 78,519 $ 38,167 $ 1,727 $ 22,000
Stockholders� equity $ 312,468 $ 261,925 $ 210,702 $ 170,769 $ 91,405

(1) Includes the results of operations from acquired businesses from the date of acquisition. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(2) Reflects an increase in amortization of intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of certain businesses during 2006,
2005 and 2004 as well as an increase in capital lease assets, other capital expenditures and capitalized software.

(3) Other expense, net, which primarily includes interest expense, increased significantly from 2005 to 2006 primarily as a result of an
increase in outstanding borrowings related to the acquisition of PCCI and Bradson during 2006.

(4) Kforce recognized an income tax benefit in 2004 primarily as a result of a $19.2 million reversal of a valuation allowance.
(5) Includes approximately 2.3 million and 5.7 million shares issued during 2005 and 2004 as consideration for the acquisition of Vista and

Hall, Kinion, respectively.

Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (�MD&A�) is intended to help the reader
understand Kforce Inc., our operations and our present business environment. MD&A is provided as a supplement to - and should be read in
conjunction with - our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes thereto contained in �Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data� of this report as well as �Item 1. Business� of this report for an overview of our operations and business environment. This
overview summarizes the MD&A, which includes the following sections:
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� Executive Summary � an executive summary of our 2007 results.

� Critical Accounting Estimates � a discussion of the accounting estimates that are most critical to aid in fully understanding and
evaluating our reported financial results and that require management�s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments.

� New Accounting Standards � a discussion of recently issued accounting standards and their potential impact on our consolidated
financial statements.
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� Results of Operations � an analysis of Kforce�s consolidated results of operations for the three years presented in our consolidated
financial statements. In order to assist the reader in understanding our business as a whole, certain metrics are presented for each of
our four segments.

� Liquidity and Capital Resources � an analysis of cash flows, off-balance sheet arrangements, stock repurchases and contractual
obligations and commitments and the impact of changes in interest rates on our business.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The following is an executive summary of what Kforce believes are important 2007 highlights, which should be considered in the context of the
additional discussions herein and in conjunction with the Financial Statements and notes thereto. We believe such highlights are as follows:

� Net service revenues improved 10.5% to $1.037 billion in 2007 from $938.4 million in 2006, eclipsing the $1 billion mark for the
first time in the Firm�s history.

� Search revenue increased 10.2% to $78.1 million in 2007 from $70.9 million in 2006.

� Gross profit margin increased 120 basis points to 35.9% in 2007 from 34.7% in 2006 reflecting the Firm�s continued focus on the
spread between bill and pay rates.

� Net income for 2007 of $40.4 million is an improvement of 24.1% over 2006 net income of $32.5 million.

� Total outstanding under the Credit Facility decreased 41.8% to $50.3 million as of December 31, 2007 from $86.4 million in 2006.

� Diluted earnings per share increased 23.4% to $0.95 for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $0.77 in 2006.

� The Firm completed a successful implementation of additional back office software modules, which went live during August 2007.
These modules are expected to enhance the efficiency and productivity of sales and delivery activities such as the order, time entry,
billing and cash receipt processes and also improve customer service.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(�GAAP�). In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates about
future events, and apply judgments that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and the related disclosures. We base
our assumptions, estimates and judgments on historical experience, current trends, and other factors that management believes to be relevant at
the time our consolidated financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, management reviews the accounting policies, estimates,
assumptions and judgments to ensure that our consolidated financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance with GAAP. However,
because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and
such differences could be material.

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management believes that
the following accounting estimates are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results, and they
require management�s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, resulting from the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that
are inherently uncertain.
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Description Judgments and Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results

Differ From Assumptions
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts

See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, for a complete discussion of our policies
related to determining our allowance for doubtful
accounts and fallouts.

Kforce performs an ongoing analysis of factors
including recent write-off and delinquency trends,
changes in economic conditions, a specific analysis
of material accounts receivable balances that are
past due, and concentration of accounts receivable
among clients, in establishing its allowance for
doubtful accounts.

Kforce estimates its allowance for Search fallouts
based on our extensive historical experience with
the actual occurrence of fallouts.

We have not made any material changes in the
accounting methodology used to establish our
allowance for doubtful accounts and fallouts. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the allowance was
1.8% and 2.0% as a percentage of gross accounts
receivable, respectively.

We do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood
that there will be a material change in the future
estimates or assumptions we use to calculate our
allowance for doubtful accounts. However, if our
estimates regarding estimated accounts receivable
losses are inaccurate, we may be exposed to losses
or gains that could be material. A 10% difference in
actual accounts receivable losses reserved for at
December 31, 2007, would have affected net
earnings by approximately $0.2 million in fiscal
2007.

Although we do not believe that there is a
reasonable likelihood that there will be a material
change in the actual occurrence of fallouts, a 10%
difference in our actual fallout experience would
have impacted net earnings by $0.1 million in fiscal
2007.
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Description Judgments and Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results

Differ From Assumptions
Goodwill Impairment

We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually and
whenever events and circumstances indicate the carrying
value of the goodwill may not be recoverable. See Note
5, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8,
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a complete discussion
of the valuation methodology employed.

We completed our annual assessment of goodwill
impairment as of December 31, 2007 using the
methodology described, therein and determined there
was no impairment.

The carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2007
was $237.6 million.

We determine the fair value of our reporting units
using widely accepted valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow and market multiple
analyses. These types of analyses contain
uncertainties because they require management to
make assumptions such as an appropriate rate to
discount expected future cash flows and to apply
judgment to estimate industry economic factors and
the likelihood of achieving forecasted operating
results.

It is our policy to conduct impairment testing based
on our current business strategy in light of present
industry and economic conditions, as well as future
expectations.

We have not made any material changes in our
impairment loss assessment methodology
during the past three fiscal years.

We do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in the future estimates or assumptions we use
to test for impairment losses on goodwill and
other intangible assets. However, if actual
results are not consistent with our estimates or
assumptions, we may be exposed to an
impairment charge that could be material.

A 10% change in the discount rate utilized in
the goodwill impairment assessment would not
have resulted in an impairment charge.

Acquisitions � Purchase Price Allocations

In accordance with accounting for business
combinations, we allocate the purchase price of an
acquired business to its identifiable assets and liabilities
based on estimated fair values. The excess of the
purchase price over the amount allocated to the assets
and liabilities, if any, is recorded as goodwill.

We use all available information to estimate fair values
and we adjust the preliminary purchase price allocation,
as necessary, up to one year after the acquisition closing
date as we obtain more information regarding asset
valuations and liabilities assumed.

Our purchase price allocation methodology contains
uncertainties because it requires management to
make assumptions and to apply judgment to
estimate the fair value of acquired assets and
liabilities. Management estimates the fair value of
assets and liabilities based upon quoted market
prices, the carrying value of the acquired assets and
widely accepted valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flows and market multiple
analyses.

Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur
which could affect the accuracy of our fair value
estimates, including assumptions regarding industry
economic factors and business strategies.

During the last two fiscal years, we completed
two significant acquisitions. See Note 6,
Acquisitions, to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in Item 8,
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the
purchase price allocation calculations as well
as a description of the methods used to value
the identifiable intangible assets.

We do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in the future estimates or assumptions we use
to complete the purchase price allocation and
estimate the fair value of acquired assets and
liabilities. However, if actual results are not
consistent with our estimates or assumptions,
we may be exposed to losses or gains that
could be material.

Self-Insured Liabilities

We are self-insured for certain losses related to health
insurance and workers� compensation claims. However,
we obtain third-party insurance coverage to limit our
exposure to these claims.

When estimating our self-insured liabilities, we consider
a number of factors, including historical claims
experience, internal emphasis on more effective claims
management, demographic factors and severity factors.

Our self-insured liabilities contain uncertainties
because management is required to make
assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate the
ultimate cost to settle reported claims and claims
incurred but not reported as of the balance sheet
date.

We have not made any material changes in the
accounting methodology used to establish our
self-insured liabilities during the past three
fiscal years.

We do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in the estimates or assumptions we use to
calculate our self-insured liabilities. However,
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Periodically, management reviews its assumptions to
determine the adequacy of our self-insured liabilities.

Our liabilities for health insurance and workers�
compensation claims as of December 31, 2007 were
$2.6 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

if actual results are not consistent with our
estimates or assumptions, we may be exposed
to losses or gains that could be material.

A 10% change in our self-insured liabilities
related to health insurance and workers�
compensation as of December 31, 2007 would
have affected net earnings by approximately
$0.6 million in fiscal 2007.
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Description Judgments and Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results

Differ From Assumptions
Pension Obligation

We have a post-retirement benefit plan that benefits
certain named executive officers, the Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan (�SERP�). See Note 11,
Employee Benefit Plans, to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, for a complete discussion of the
terms of this plan.

When estimating the obligation under this plan,
management is required to make certain
assumptions and to apply judgment with respect to
determining the discount rate and expected future
compensation increases for the participants in the
plan.

We do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in the estimates or assumptions we use to
calculate our obligation. However, if actual
results are not consistent with our estimates or
assumptions, we may be exposed to losses or
gains that could be material.

A 10% change in the discount rate used to
measure the obligation would have affected net
earnings by approximately $0.1 million in
fiscal 2007.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have stock-based compensation plans, which
includes options, stock appreciation rights and nonvested
share awards and an employee stock purchase plan. See
Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,
Note 11, Employee Benefit Plans, and Note 12, Stock
Incentive Plans, to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, for a complete discussion of our stock-based
compensation programs.

We determine the fair value of our stock option awards
and stock appreciation rights (�SARS�) at the date of grant
using widely accepted option-pricing models such as the
Black-Scholes model as well as a lattice model.

We determine the fair value of our restricted stock and
performance accelerated restricted stock (�PARS�) based
upon the intrinsic value at the date of grant.

Management reviews its assumptions to determine the
fair value of stock-based compensation awards.

Option-pricing models and generally accepted
valuation techniques require management to make
assumptions and to apply judgment to determine the
fair value of our awards. These assumptions and
judgments include estimating the future volatility of
our stock price, expected dividend yield, risk-free
rates, future employee turnover rates and future
employee stock option exercise behaviors. Changes
in these assumptions can materially affect the
estimate of fair value.

Restricted stock and PARS require management to
make assumptions regarding the likelihood of
achieving company or personal performance goals.

SARS and PARS also have certain acceleration
provisions, which are difficult to estimate.

We do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in the future estimates or assumptions we use
to determine stock-based compensation
expense. However, if actual results are not
consistent with our estimates or assumptions,
we may be exposed to changes in stock-based
compensation expense that could be material.

If actual results are not consistent with the
assumptions used, the stock-based
compensation expense reported in our
financial statements may not be representative
of the actual economic cost of the stock-based
compensation.

A 10% change in our stock-based
compensation expense would have affected net
earnings by approximately $0.3 million in
fiscal 2007.

Accounting for Income Taxes

See Note 3, Income Taxes, to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, for a complete discussion of the
components of Kforce�s income tax expense as well as
the temporary differences that exist as of December 31,
2007.

Our consolidated effective income tax rate is
influenced by tax planning opportunities available
to us in the various jurisdictions in which we
conduct business. Significant judgment is required
in determining our effective tax rate and in
evaluating our tax positions.

We do not believe that there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change
in our liability for uncertain income tax
positions or our effective income tax rate.
However, if actual results are not consistent
with our estimates or assumptions, we may be
exposed to losses that could be material.
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Upon adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
Kforce�s total liability for uncertain tax positions
was approximately $0.9 million, none of which
would impact our effective tax rate upon reversal
due to the amounts being related to acquisitions.

Kforce is also required to exercise judgment with
respect to the realization of our net deferred tax
asset.

A 0.50% change in our effective income tax
rate would have affected net income by
approximately $0.3 million in fiscal 2007.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations (�SFAS 141R�), which replaces SFAS No. 141. This statement
retains the purchase method of accounting for acquisitions but establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer entity recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired (including intangibles), the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity. This standard also changes the recognition of assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising from contingencies,
and requires the expensing of acquisition-related costs as incurred, among others. The statement will apply prospectively to business
combinations occurring in our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (�SFAS 159�). SFAS 159
provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. It also establishes presentation and disclosure
requirements to facilitate comparisons between companies using different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. The
statement is effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008. Although we currently do not anticipate adopting the provisions of SFAS
159 based upon our ongoing assessment of the impact adopting SFAS 159, we are still finalizing our assessment.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements (�SFAS 157�). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement is effective for our fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2008. Although we are currently finalizing our assessment of the impact adopting SFAS 157 will have on our financial statements, we
believe the impact is limited to the fair value measurements of our workers� compensation liability, credit facility and capital lease obligations.
However, we do not believe that this will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 157-2 (�FSP 157-2�). FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for
non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years. In February 2008, the FASB
also issued FSP No. 157-1 (�FSP 157-1�) that would exclude leasing transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, and
its related interpretive accounting pronouncements. We do not expect the SFAS 157 related guidance to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation (�FIN�) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (�FIN 48�). This interpretation
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109. This
interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Under this interpretation, the evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. First, the
enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, based on the technical merits of
the position. The second step measures the benefit to be recorded from tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold,
whereby the enterprise determines the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement, and recognizes that benefit in its financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 was adopted by Kforce effective January 1, 2007 and did not have a
material impact on Kforce�s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-3 (�EITF 06-3�), Disclosure Requirements for Taxes
Assessed by a Governmental Authority on Revenue-Producing Transactions. The consensus states that there are two acceptable alternatives
based on their accounting policies for transactions in which the company collects taxes on behalf of a governmental authority, such as sales
taxes. The guidance should be applied to financial reports through retrospective application for all periods presented, if required, for interim and
annual reporting beginning after December 15, 2006. Kforce collects sales tax for various taxing authorities and it is our policy to record these
amounts on a net basis. Therefore, these amounts are not included in net service revenues for any period presented. The adoption of EITF 06-3
did not have an impact on Kforce�s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-5 (�EITF 06-5�), Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance � Determining the
Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, which addresses the amount that can be reported as an
asset under a company�s life insurance policies based upon the amount that can be realized under the contractual terms on a policy by policy
basis. We adopted EITF 06-5 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, and it did not have any impact on Kforce�s consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

During 2007, Kforce eclipsed the $1 billion mark in net service revenues for the first time in the Firm�s history and generated record net income
of $40.4 million, or $0.95 earnings per share on a fully-diluted basis. These operational results were achieved during a year that had growing
concerns about the macro-economic environment including a weakening economy or recession with declining GDP growth, an increase in the
unemployment rate for individuals with college degrees to 2.2% at the end of 2007 compared to 1.9% as of the end of 2006, and a growing U.S.
trade deficit. The economic uncertainties in which we operate make it challenging for Kforce to predict the near-term future; however, we have
experienced continued expansion of overall gross profit margins and Flex gross profit margins, which is adjusted for the permanent staffing
component of our business, in all of our business segments in 2007, 2006 and 2005. The Firm has also experienced continued growth in net
service revenues in all of our business segments in 2007, 2006 and 2005 with the exception of our FA segment, which declined 6.6% in 2007.
The overall growth experienced in 2007 was below that experienced in 2006. The decline in FA net service revenues was due to, among other
things, the conclusion of project-specific Flex business with a few significant customers that had both high volume and high bill rates. Our
Search business has shown growth in 2007, 2006 and 2005 and we believe that our focus on building the Search sales team positions us to take
advantage of improvements in the Search market as the experience levels of these new associates increases.

We believe that some of the key components to our recent success were the initiatives undertaken during the last several years, i.e. to restructure
both our back office and field operations, and to upgrade our corporate systems and technology. The results of these efforts have increased our
operating efficiencies, thereby enabling us to be more responsive to our clients. We believe our field operations model, which allows us to
deliver our service offerings in a disciplined and consistent manner across all geographies and business lines, as well as our highly centralized
back office operations, are competitive advantages and keys to our future growth and profitability.

Kforce believes that the 2006 acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI, the 2005 acquisition of Vista and the 2004 acquisition of Hall Kinion have been
successfully integrated into the operations of Kforce. As a result of our successful integration efforts, revenues and costs contributed by
commercial clients of the acquired entities are merged into the Kforce business segments, making it not feasible to accurately estimate the
impact of the acquired businesses on Kforce�s consolidated revenues and margins. Federal government prime contracting revenue and costs
acquired with the PCCI and Bradson acquisitions are reported in our new GS segment. Net service revenues during the fourth quarter of 2007 for
our GS segment increased 23% over the fourth quarter of 2006, which was the first full quarter of Bradson and PCCI net service revenues.

We believe that the future stabilization in the U.S. economy and favorable demographic trends will allow for continued improving trends in the
staffing industry and growth opportunities across all of our business segments in terms of both revenue and profitability. However, given the
significant uncertainty in the economic environment as we head into 2008, it remains difficult to predict the near- term profitability and growth
potential of the business as well as when the stabilization in the U.S. economy will occur. A U.S. recession, if it should occur, would likely have
a significant adverse impact on our business.

Net Service Revenues. The following table sets forth, as a percentage of net service revenues, certain items in our consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended:

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005

Revenue by Segment:
Tech 50.0% 48.6% 46.2%
FA 22.5 26.6 30.4
HLS 21.5 21.3 23.4
GS 6.0 3.5 �  

Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Revenue by Time:
Flex 92.5% 92.4% 93.2%
Search 7.5 7.6 6.8

Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Gross profit 35.9% 34.7% 32.4%
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Selling, general and administrative expenses 27.6% 27.4% 26.5%
Income before income taxes 6.4% 5.6% 4.6%
Net income 3.9% 3.5% 2.8%
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The following table details net service revenues by service offering for each business segment and percentage changes from the prior year.

(in $000�s) 2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech
Flex $ 488,968 13.5% $ 430,731 22.1% $ 352,743
Search 29,820 16.3% 25,638 42.1% 18,037

Total Tech $ 518,788 13.7% $ 456,369 23.1% $ 370,780

FA
Flex $ 189,824 (9.1)% $ 208,815 (1.4)% $ 211,873
Search 43,301 6.4% 40,688 27.8% 31,834

Total FA $ 233,125 (6.6)% $ 249,503 2.4% $ 243,707

HLS
Flex $ 218,293 11.9% $ 195,162 6.8% $ 182,775
Search 4,945 9.0% 4,537 (9.3)% 5,003

Total HLS $ 223,238 11.8% $ 199,699 6.3% $ 187,778

GS
Flex $ 61,764 87.9% $ 32,877 �  $ �  
Search �  �  �  �  �  

Total GS $ 61,764 87.9% $ 32,877 �  $ �  

Total Flex $ 958,849 10.5% $ 867,585 16.1% $ 747,391
Total Search 78,066 10.2% 70,863 29.1% 54,874

Total Revenue $ 1,036,915 10.5% $ 938,448 17.0% $ 802,265

As a result of the acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI in October and February 2006, respectively, Kforce added the Government Solutions
segment. Fiscal 2007 was this segment�s first full year of operations.

While quarterly comparisons are not fully discussed herein, certain quarterly revenue trends are referred to in discussing the annual comparisons.
This unaudited 2007 quarterly information is presented for this purpose only.

QUARTER ENDED
(in $000�s, except Billing Days) DEC 31 SEPT 30 JUNE 30 MARCH 31
Billing Days 61 63 64 63
Flex Revenue
Tech $ 124,899 $ 124,373 $ 122,765 $ 116,931
FA 46,163 45,082 47,698 50,881
HLS 56,916 56,404 53,999 50,974
GS 16,451 15,824 15,219 14,270

Total Flex $ 244,429 $ 241,683 $ 239,681 $ 233,056
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Search Revenue
Tech $ 6,765 $ 7,967 $ 7,553 $ 7,535
FA 10,229 10,946 11,476 10,650
HLS 1,200 1,464 1,214 1,067

Total Search $ 18,194 $ 20,377 $ 20,243 $ 19,252

Total Revenue
Tech $ 131,664 $ 132,340 $ 130,318 $ 124,466
FA 56,392 56,028 59,174 61,531
HLS 58,116 57,868 55,213 52,041
GS 16,451 15,824 15,219 14,270

Total Revenue $ 262,623 $ 262,060 $ 259,924 $ 252,308
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Flex Revenues. The primary drivers of Flex revenues are the number of hours, the bill rate per hour and, to a limited degree, the amount of
expenses incurred by Kforce that are billable to the client.

Kforce experienced growth during 2007 and 2006 in flex revenues in all business segments with the exception of FA, which decreased 9.1% and
1.4%, respectively. The decrease in Flex revenues for FA during 2007 and 2006 was primarily due to the following items: (i) the conclusion of
project-specific business with a few significant customers that had both high volume and high bill rates, (ii) an increased focus on clients
providing higher gross margins and (iii) a decline in mortgage-related client needs due to the decline in the mortgage lending market, which now
represents less than 1% of net service revenues. The FA segment experienced sequential growth on a billing day basis of 5.7% in the fourth
quarter of 2007 over the third quarter of 2007, which was anticipated by management given the factors described above.

Continued economic growth and our focus on pricing and customer profitability contributed to an increase in the average bill rate per hour to
$54.47 during 2007 and $50.26 during 2006, an increase of 8.4% and 14.9% over 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, the increase in Flex
revenues during 2007 and 2006 for Tech and HLS was impacted by increases in the total number of hours, which is a result of the number of
assignments available requiring temporary staffing personnel. These increases resulted from increased penetration with existing clients as well as
new clients when compared to 2006 and 2005.

Although fiscal 2007 was the first full year of operations for our GS segment, Flex revenues demonstrated an upward trend throughout 2007. Net
service revenues during the fourth quarter of 2007 for our GS segment increased 23% over the fourth quarter of 2006, which was the first full
quarter of Bradson and PCCI net service revenues.

Total flex hours for each business segment were as follows for the years ended December 31:

(in 000�s) 2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech 7,366 10.3% 6,680 13.9% 5,865
FA 5,304 (12.2)% 6,041 (15.1)% 7,116
HLS 3,864 2.2% 3,782 1.0% 3,746
GS 674 76.0% 383 �  �  

Total hours 17,208 1.9% 16,886 1.0% 16,727

The changes in billable expenses, which are included as a component of net services revenues, for Tech, FA, HLS and GS, are primarily
attributable to increases or decreases in project work. Flex billable expenses for each of our business segments were as follows for the years
ended December 31:

(in $000�s) 2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech $ 3,310 0.0% $ 3,310 14.3% $ 2,897
FA 321 (51.1)% 656 (8.1)% 714
HLS 17,633 22.1% 14,439 22.9% 11,745
GS 348 (39.8)% 578 �  �  

Total billable expenses $ 21,612 13.9% $ 18,983 23.6% $ 15,356

Search Fees. The increase or decrease in Search fees is primarily attributable to the increase or decrease in the number of placements as well as
the average fee earned on each placement.
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Total placements for each business segment, except for our GS segment which does not do permanent placements, were as follows for the years
ended December 31:

2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech 1,901 8.3% 1,755 32.3% 1,327
FA 3,273 2.4% 3,197 13.5% 2,816
HLS 413 10.1% 375 (15.9)% 446

Total placements 5,587 4.9% 5,327 16.1% 4,589
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The average fee per placement for each business segment, except for our GS segment which does not do permanent placements, were as follows
for the years ended December 31:

2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech $ 15,685 7.3% $ 14,613 7.6% $ 13,588
FA 13,231 4.0% 12,728 12.6% 11,305
HLS 11,970 (1.0)% 12,091 7.8% 11,215

Total average placement fee $ 13,973 5.0% $ 13,304 11.3% $ 11,957

Although there can be no assurance that historical trends will continue, Search activity historically decreases heading into the troughs of an
economic cycle, increases after economic conditions have shown sustained improvement and is the strongest during the peak of an economic
cycle.

Gross Profit. Gross profit on Flex billings is determined by deducting the direct cost of services (primarily flexible personnel payroll wages,
payroll taxes, payroll-related insurance, and subcontract costs) from net service revenues. Consistent with industry practices, gross profit
dollars from Search fees are equal to revenues, because there are generally no direct costs associated with such revenues.

The following table presents, for each business segment, the gross profit percentage for the year as well as the increase or decrease over the
preceding period, as follows:

2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech 32.7% 3.2% 31.7% 7.1% 29.6%
FA 45.7% 5.3% 43.4% 13.3% 38.3%
HLS 32.4% 3.2% 31.4% 3.6% 30.3%
GS 38.8% 21.3% 32.0% �  �  

Total gross profit percentage 35.9% 3.5% 34.7% 7.1% 32.4%

Changes in the amount of search fees as a percent of total revenue can significantly impact total gross profit percentage because Search
revenue contributes 100% to gross profit, as was described previously. Given this dynamic, Kforce monitors the gross profit percentage as a
percentage of Flex revenues, which is referred to as the Flex gross profit percentage. This provides management with the insight necessary
into the other drivers of total gross profit percentage such as changes in volume evidenced by changes in hours billed for Flex and changes in
the spread between bill rate and pay rate (�Flex Rate�) for Flex.

The increase in Search gross profit from 2006 to 2007 was $7.2 million, comprised of a $3.6 million increase in volume and rate. The
increase in Search gross profit from 2005 to 2006 was $16.0 million, comprised of a $10.0 million increase in volume and a $6.0 million
increase in rate.
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The following table presents, for each business segment, the Flex gross profit percentage for the years ended December 31:

2007
Increase

(Decrease) 2006
Increase

(Decrease) 2005
Tech 28.6% 3.3% 27.7% 6.5% 26.0%
FA 33.3% 3.1% 32.3% 11.4% 29.0%
HLS 30.9% 3.7% 29.8% 4.9% 28.4%
GS 38.8% 21.3% 32.0% �  �  

Total Flex gross profit percentage 30.7% 4.4% 29.4% 7.3% 27.4%
The increase in Flex gross profit from 2006 to 2007 was $39.0 million, $33.5 million of which resulted from an increase in the Flex Rate and
$5.5 million resulted from an increase in volume driven by higher total hours. The increase in Flex gross profit from 2005 to 2006 was $50.1
million, $46.1 million of which resulted from an increase in the Flex Rate and $4.0 million resulted from an increase in volume.

Flex gross profit percentage has been positively impacted by improvements in the Flex Rate in 2005, 2006, and 2007. We attribute this
improvement to our continued focus on pricing, client mix, and business mix. We expect this improvement to moderate as we continue to
increase the percentage of business with our national customers, which generally have higher volume and lower margins. Market pressures on
pay rates tend to increase as supply tightens, which adversely impacts the Flex gross profit percentage. Additionally, payroll taxes, particularly
unemployment taxes, which are highest in the first quarter of the year because employees have not yet earned sufficient wages to exceed the
basis on which taxes are payable, have risen in recent years and may continue to rise and negatively impact Flex gross profit.

25

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 47



Table of Contents

Selling, General and Administrative (�SG&A�) Expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, total commissions,
compensation, payroll taxes, and benefit costs as a percentage of SG&A represented 81.8%, 78.7% and 77.4%, respectively. Commissions and
related payroll taxes and benefit costs are variable costs driven primarily by revenue and gross profit levels, and associate productivity.
Therefore, as gross profit levels increase, compensation levels would also generally be anticipated to increase but remain relatively consistent as
a percentage of revenues.

The following table presents these components of SG&A along with an �other� caption for each of the three years ended December 31, 2007 as an
absolute amount and as a percentage of total net service revenues:

(in $000�s) 2007 % of Revenue 2006 % of Revenue 2005 % of Revenue
Compensation and benefits $ 122,210 11.8% $ 101,928 10.9% $ 84,974 10.6%
Commissions 112,072 10.8% 100,542 10.7% 79,768 9.9%
Other 52,087 5.0% 54,717 5.8% 47,982 6.0%

Total SG&A $ 286,369 27.6% $ 257,187 27.4% $ 212,724 26.5%

SG&A expenses as a percentage of net service revenues increased 0.2% in 2007 as compared to 2006. This was primarily attributable to (i) an
increase in compensation and benefits, (ii) a relatively flat level of commissions as a percentage of revenue and (iii) decreases in other expenses
such as lease, travel and professional fees as a percentage of revenue as a result of a focus on cost containment. The increase in compensation
and benefits expense as a percentage of net service revenues in 2007 and 2006 is primarily a result of increased expenses driven by the
implementation of additional incentive plans, increased bonuses reflecting our guiding principle related to pay-for-performance compensation
plans, increased headcount, increasing costs of payroll taxes, particularly unemployment taxes which have risen in recent years as well as
increases in health insurance costs. As of January 1, 2006, Kforce accounts for stock-based compensation under the provisions of SFAS 123R,
Share-Based Payment (�SFAS 123R�). This statement requires Kforce to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award
of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. That cost is recognized over the period in which the employee is required
to provide service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense, which includes options,
stock appreciation rights (�SARS�), performance accelerated restricted stock (�PARS�) and restricted stock, for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 was $3.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively, an increase in 2007 of $2.2 million, or 0.2% of net service revenues.

Pension expense attributable to the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (�SERP�) and Supplemental Executive Retirement Health Plan
(�SERHP�) during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $2.1 million, or 0.2% of net service revenues.

During 2007, Kforce recorded reductions to selling, general and administrative expenses of $1.8 million related to a workers� compensation
insurance premium audit, the elimination of an escheatment liability and other miscellaneous activity. Each of these amounts was related to
Kforce�s 2004 acquisition of Hall Kinion and represented 0.2% of net service revenues.

In addition to those activities undertaken to improve efficiencies, Kforce has attempted to manage its accounts receivable to minimize write-offs
and has significantly improved its accounts receivable aging and collections processes during recent years. Though there can be no assurance
that Kforce will be able to maintain low levels of write-offs in the future, Kforce�s ability to sustain minimal write-offs and maintain days sales
outstanding of accounts receivable at low levels has contributed to its continued low levels of SG&A as a percentage of revenue. During the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, bad debt expense (recovery) was $1.2 million, $(1.7) million and less than $0.1 million,
respectively.

Kforce has substantially restructured both its field and back office operations over the past several years in an effort to manage SG&A expenses
as a percentage of revenue. Some of the activities completed over the past three years as a result of restructuring include: (1) the roll-out of a
new front-end system and related methodologies in our field operations to ensure a consistent, disciplined process in our sales, recruiting and
delivery activities; (2) the restructuring of compensation plans to more closely align with actual performance; and (3) the restructuring and
consolidation of our technology infrastructure. As a result of increased efficiencies achieved by these actions, we believe our back office and
other support service costs will increase at a lower rate than our revenues and profit in a growing environment.
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Depreciation and amortization. The following table presents depreciation and amortization expense by major category for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 as well as the increases experienced during 2007 and 2006:

(in $000�s)
2007

Expense
% Increase
(Decrease)

2006
Expense

% Increase
(Decrease)

2005
Expense

Fixed asset depreciation $ 2,353 20.2% $ 1,958 12.0% $ 1,749
Capital lease asset depreciation 2,969 29.5 2,293 78.3 1,286
Capitalized software amortization 3,641 55.5 2,342 60.5 1,459
Intangible asset amortization 5,524 13.1 4,885 39.5 3,502
Other amortization �  (100.0) 74 (74.2) 287

Total depreciation and amortization $ 14,487 25.4% $ 11,552 39.5% $ 8,283

Fixed Asset Depreciation: The $0.4 million and $0.2 million increases in 2007 and 2006, respectively, were primarily related to increases in
expenditures on leasehold improvements, which resulted primarily from expansions in the business and the number of field office renewals.

Capital Lease Asset Depreciation: The $0.7 million and $1.0 million increase in 2007 and 2006, respectively, were primarily related to increases
in computer hardware and furniture and equipment under capital leases as opposed to operating leases, as determined by SFAS No. 13,
Accounting for Leases.

Capitalized Software Amortization: The $1.3 million increase in 2007 is primarily related to the commencement of amortization on the new back
office computer system software in August 2007. Kforce implemented additional back office system software modules, which we believe will
enhance the efficiency and productivity of our sales and delivery activities such as our order, time entry, billing and cash receipt processes as
well as improve customer service. As of December 31, 2007, Kforce has capitalized costs of approximately $11.1 million related to this
implementation. Based upon the estimated useful life of the software, Kforce believes that this will lead to an increase in software amortization
of approximately $0.6 million per quarter. The $0.9 million increase in 2006 is primarily related to increased amortization related to front end
software.

Intangible Asset Amortization: The $0.6 million and $1.4 million increases in 2007 and 2006, respectively, are primarily related to the
acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI in October and February of 2006, respectively.

Other Expense. Other expense was $5.0 million in 2007, $4.4 million in 2006 and $1.8 million in 2005, and consists primarily of interest
expense related to Kforce�s Credit Facility. The increase of $0.6 million and $2.6 million, respectively, was primarily due to interest expense
increases resulting primarily from the acquisitions of PCCI and Bradson during 2006, which were funded using borrowings under Kforce�s Credit
Facility. As a result of Kforce�s continued emphasis on paying down outstanding debt during 2007, corresponding decreases in interest expense
have been realized during 2007.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense as a percentage of income before taxes (our �effective rate�) for each of the three years ended December 31,
2007 was 39.3%, 38.7% and 39.9%, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2006 was primarily a result of the reversal of a
deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which positively impacted the effective rate by 1.6%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

To meet our capital and liquidity requirements, we primarily rely on operating cash flow as well as borrowings under our existing Credit
Facility. At December 31, 2007, Kforce had $95.3 million in working capital compared to $64.4 million in 2006. Kforce�s current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 2.1 at the end of 2007 as compared to 1.7 at the end of 2006.

Please see the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2007 in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, for a more detailed description of our cash flows. Kforce is principally focused on achieving the
appropriate balance in the following areas of cash flow: (i) achieving positive cash flow from operating activities; (ii) investing in our Firm�s
infrastructure to allow sustainable growth via capital expenditures; (iii) making strategic acquisitions, (iv) reducing the outstanding balance of
our Credit Facility and (v) repurchases of our common stock.
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The following table presents a summary of our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(in $000�s) 2007 2006 2005
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 48,770 $ 51,948 $ 51,443
Investing activities (14,388) (144,142) (9,525)
Financing activities (34,888) 56,679 (5,177)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (506) $ (35,515) $ 36,741

Operating Activities

The significant variations in cash provided by operating activities and net income are principally related to adjustments to net income for certain
non-cash charges such as depreciation and amortization expense. These adjustments are more fully detailed in our Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2007 in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Investing Activities

Kforce�s acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI in 2006 were substantially funded with borrowings under our Credit Facility. In addition, capital
expenditures have been made over the years in Kforce�s infrastructure as we grow our business. Capital expenditures during 2007 of $11.4
million were substantially related to the additional back office system software modules, which, as mentioned previously, went live during
August 2007. We believe these investments will enhance the efficiency and productivity of our sales and delivery activities such as our order,
time entry, billing and cash receipt processes as well as improve customer service. Although we will continue to invest in capital expenditures,
we believe that 2007 was a peak for the foreseeable future and also believe that moderation of these amounts will occur in the next 12 months.
Kforce believes it has sufficient cash and/or availability under its Credit Facility to make any necessary future capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

During 2007, cash flow from operations of $48.8 million in addition to the proceeds received from the exercise of equity awards of $4.1 million,
allowed Kforce to reduce its outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility to $50.3 million as of December 31, 2007 from $86.4 million as of
December 31, 2006.

Credit Facility

On October 2, 2006, Kforce entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America, N.A.
(the �Credit Facility�). Kforce�s maximum borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to $140 million, which includes a revolving loan
tranche of up to $125 million (the �Revolving Loan Amount�) and a $15 million sub-limit for letters of credit. In April 2007, an additional
revolving loan tranche (the �Additional Availability Amount�) that allowed up to $25 million was retired by Kforce.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable less certain minimum availability reserves and bear
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.25% or Prime. Letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility require Kforce to pay a fronting fee equal to
.125% of the amount of each letter of credit issued plus 1.25% per annum of the total amount of letters of credit outstanding. To the extent that
Kforce has unused availability under the Credit Facility, an unused line fee is required to be paid equal to 0.25% of the average unused balance
on a monthly basis. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are principally secured by our accounts receivable but are also secured by substantially
all of the assets of Kforce. Under the Credit Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio
requirements. The Credit Facility expires during November 2011.

In addition to the $50.3 million outstanding under our Credit Facility as of December 31, 2007, amounts available under the Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2007 and February 26, 2008 were $68.6 million and $57.1 million, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 51



Kforce does not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements that have had, or are expected to have, an effect on our consolidated financial
statements.
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Stock Repurchases

Our Board of Directors had previously authorized the repurchase of up to $115 million of our common stock on the open market, from time to
time, depending on market conditions. On June 23, 2005, our Board of Directors increased its authorization for open market repurchases of
common stock by $20 million to $135 million. As of December 31, 2006, we had repurchased approximately 20.8 million shares for $120.2
million under this plan. As there were no shares repurchased during 2007, $14.8 million remained available for future repurchases as of
December 31, 2007. During February 2008, our Board of Directors increased its authorization for open market repurchases of common stock by
$50 million to bring the total to $64.8 when combined with the $14.8 million that was available under the current Board authorization as of
December 31, 2007.

On January 2, 2008, Kforce filed a Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission announcing that it had entered into a corporate
stock repurchase plan in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, which was effective from January 7, 2008
through February 11, 2008. This corporate stock repurchase plan was subject to certain price, market, volume and timing constraints, which
were specified in the plan. As of February 27, 2008, Kforce repurchased 1.5 million shares for $13.0 million and had $51.8 million available for
future repurchases under its current authorization.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table presents our expected future contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007:

Payments due by period

(in $000�s) Total
Less than

1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
More than

5 years
Operating lease obligations $ 42,298 $ 10,329 $ 13,413 $ 7,248 $ 11,308
Capital lease obligations 5,490 2,703 2,418 369 �  
Credit facility 50,330 �  �  50,330 �  
Interest payable � credit facility (a) 13,254 3,458 6,915 2,881 �  
Purchase obligations 6,894 3,409 2,630 750 105
Liability for unrecognized tax positions � FIN 48 (b) �  �  �  �  �  
Deferred compensation plan liability (c) 14,299 687 1,354 337 11,921
Other (d) �  �  �  �  �  
SERP liability (e) 42,943 �  �  �  42,943

Total $ 175,508 $ 20,586 $ 26,730 $ 61,915 $ 66,277

(a) Kforce�s weighted average interest rate as of December 31, 2007 was 6.87%, which was utilized to forecast the expected future interest rate
payments. These payments are inherently uncertain due to interest rate and outstanding borrowings fluctuations that may occur over the
remaining term of the Credit Facility.

(b) Kforce�s liability for unrecognized tax positions pursuant to FIN 48 as of December 31, 2007 was $0.5 million. This balance has been
excluded from the table above due to the significant uncertainty with respect to expected settlements.

(c) Kforce has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which eligible highly compensated key employees may elect to defer
part of their compensation to later years. These amounts, which are classified as other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities,
respectively, are payable upon retirement or termination of employment. Amounts payable upon the retirement or termination of
employment may become payable during the next five years if covered employees retire or terminate during that time.

(d) Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of cash deposits. Kforce currently has letters of credit totaling $6.1 million
outstanding as security for workers� compensation and property insurance policies as well as facility lease deposits. Kforce maintains a
sub-limit for letters of credit of $15 million under its Credit Facility.

(e) There is no funding requirement associated with the SERP. Although the funding amount is not currently known, Kforce anticipates
funding the SERP during 2008.

Kforce has no material unrecorded commitments, losses, contingencies or guarantees associated with any related parties or unconsolidated
entities.
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Income Tax Audits

Kforce is periodically subject to U.S. Internal Revenue Service audits as well as state and other local income tax audits for various tax years. At
December 31, 2006, Kforce Government Solutions, Inc. (formerly known as PCCI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce, had ongoing audits
being conducted by the states of New Jersey and New York. These audits were settled in 2007 with no material adverse assessments. Kforce
Government Solutions, Inc. also had an ongoing audit being conducted by the IRS as of December 31, 2006 related to its December 31, 2004
Federal income tax return. On January 31, 2007, this audit was settled with no changes to the previously filed 2004 tax return. As of
December 31, 2007, Kforce Global Solutions, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce Government Holdings, Inc., had an ongoing audit of their
2006 tax return with the Philippines Bureau of Inland Revenue. No assessments related to this audit have been proposed as of December 31,
2007. Although Kforce�s history with income tax audits has been positive, which we believe will continue in the future, Kforce can make no
assurances that this will occur.

We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents, cash flow from operations, and available borrowings under our Credit Facility will be
adequate to meet the capital expenditure and working capital requirements of our operations for at least the next twelve months. However,
deterioration in the economic environment and market conditions could negatively impact operating results and liquidity. There is no assurance
that if operations were to deteriorate and additional financing were to become necessary, we would be able to obtain financing in amounts
sufficient to meet operating requirements or at terms which are satisfactory and which allow us to remain competitive. Our expectation that
existing resources will fund capital expenditure and working capital requirements is a forward-looking statement that is subject to risks and
uncertainties.

Actual results could also differ materially from those indicated as a result of a number of factors, including the use of currently available
resources for possible acquisitions and possible additional stock repurchases.

Registration Statement on Form S-3

On May 24, 2002, Kforce filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 that allows the issuance of up to $250 million of common stock and other
equity and financial instruments for the financing of various corporate activities to potentially include funding for acquisitions and other
business expansion opportunities, as well as compensation arrangements. Such filings are referred to as �Shelf Registrations�. No issuance of
securities has been made under this registration statement as of December 31, 2007. The Shelf Registration was not used for the shares issued in
connection with the Hall Kinion or Vista acquisitions because Shelf Registrations on Form S-3 are not available for the registration of securities
issued in business combination transactions. There is no assurance that the existence of the Shelf Registration will assist Kforce in registering its
securities in connection with future efforts to raise capital or for other purposes.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
In addition to the risks inherent in its operations, Kforce is exposed to certain market risks; primarily changes in interest rates. The sensitivity
analysis presented below for our Credit Facility is based on a 10% change in interest rates. This change is a hypothetical scenario and is used to
calibrate potential risk and does not represent our view of future market changes.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $50.3 million outstanding under our Credit Facility. Our weighted average effective interest
rate on our Credit Facility was 6.87% at December 31, 2007. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates in effect at December 31, 2007 would
have increased annual interest expense on borrowings outstanding by $0.3 million.

From time to time, Kforce enters into interest rate swaps to minimize the risks and costs associated with financing activities. We do not engage
in trading market risk sensitive instruments for speculative purposes. As of and during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were
no interest rate swaps outstanding.

We do not believe that we have a material exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies as our international operations represent less than 1% of
net service revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007. However, Kforce will continue to assess the impact that currency fluctuations could
have on our operations going forward.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Kforce Inc.

Tampa, FL

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kforce, Inc. and subsidiaries (�Kforce�) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. We also have
audited Kforce�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Kforce�s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedules and an opinion on Kforce�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company�s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kforce as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein. Also, in our opinion, Kforce maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Tampa, FL
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KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005

Net service revenues $ 1,036,915 $ 938,448 $ 802,265
Direct costs of services 664,572 612,349 542,276

Gross profit 372,343 326,099 259,989
Selling, general and administrative expenses 286,369 257,187 212,724
Depreciation and amortization 14,487 11,552 8,283

Income from operations 71,487 57,360 38,982
Other expense (income):
Interest income (178) (174) (199)
Interest expense 5,220 4,628 2,055
Other income, net (3) (100) (40)

Income before income taxes 66,448 53,006 37,166
Provision for income taxes 26,081 20,487 14,845

Net income 40,367 32,519 22,321
Other comprehensive loss:
Cash flow hedges, net of taxes �  �  37

Comprehensive income $ 40,367 $ 32,519 $ 22,284

Earnings per share � Basic $ 0.98 $ 0.81 $ 0.58

Weighted average shares outstanding � Basic 41,308 40,189 38,527

Earnings per share � Diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.77 $ 0.55

Weighted average shares outstanding � Diluted 42,294 42,012 40,616

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

32

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 58



Table of Contents

KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(IN THOUSANDS)

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,083 $ 1,589
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and fallouts of $3,002 and $2,715, respectively 166,777 134,453
Income tax refund receivable 377 1,067
Deferred tax asset, net 8,409 8,892
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,268 4,453

Total current assets 180,914 150,454
Fixed assets, net 13,355 12,610
Other assets, net 31,982 32,993
Intangible assets, net 12,276 24,259
Goodwill 237,609 222,302

Total assets $ 476,136 $ 442,618

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 25,222 $ 24,800
Accrued payroll costs 53,613 46,455
Credit facility � current portion �  10,000
Other current debt 3,859 3,375
Income taxes payable 2,872 1,399

Total current liabilities 85,566 86,029
Long-term debt � credit facility 50,330 76,435
Long-term debt � other 2,670 2,084
Deferred tax liability, net 6,624 1,004
Other long-term liabilities 18,478 15,141

Total liabilities 163,668 180,693

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 14)

Stockholders� Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par; 15,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.01 par; 250,000 shares authorized, 60,919 and 60,383 issued, respectively 609 604
Additional paid-in capital 310,165 300,485
Retained earnings 112,580 72,213
Less reacquired shares at cost; 19,365 and 19,451 shares, respectively (110,886) (111,377)

Total stockholders� equity 312,468 261,925

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 476,136 $ 442,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

(IN THOUSANDS)

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Common stock � shares:
Shares at beginning of period 60,383 57,895 55,891
Exercise of stock options 536 1,740 420
Stock issued for business acquired �  450 1,584
Issuance of restricted stock �  298 �  

Shares at end of period 60,919 60,383 57,895

Common stock � par value:
Balance at beginning of period $ 604 $ 579 $ 559
Exercise of stock options 5 17 4
Stock issued for business acquired �  5 16
Issuance of restricted stock �  3 �  

Balance at end of period $ 609 $ 604 $ 579

Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of period $ 300,485 $ 278,486 $ 257,315
Exercise of stock options 4,113 10,401 2,266
Tax benefit from exercises of stock options and restricted stock 1,530 5,700 341
Reclassification of unamortized stock-based compensation to additional paid-in capital �  (1,094) �  
Stock-based compensation 3,430 1,160 �  
Employee stock purchase plan 607 638 256
Stock issued for business acquired �  5,197 18,308
Issuance of restricted stock �  (3) �  

Balance at end of period $ 310,165 $ 300,485 $ 278,486

Unamortized stock-based compensation:
Balance at beginning of period $ �  $ (1,094) $ (2,759)
Amortization of stock-based compensation �  �  1,665
Reclassification of unamortized stock-based compensation to additional paid-in capital �  1,094 �  

Balance at end of period $ �  $ �  $ (1,094)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Balance at beginning of period $ �  $ �  $ 37
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of taxes �  �  (37)

Balance at end of period $ �  $ �  $ �  

Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of period $ 72,213 $ 39,694 $ 17,373
Net income 40,367 32,519 22,321
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Balance at end of period $ 112,580 $ 72,213 $ 39,694

Treasury stock � shares:
Shares at beginning of period 19,451 19,238 18,614
Employee stock purchase plan (86) (172) (127)
Repurchase of common stock �  385 751

Shares at end of period 19,365 19,451 19,238

Treasury stock � cost:
Balance at beginning of period $ (111,377) $ (106,963) $ (101,756)
Employee stock purchase plan 491 959 705
Repurchase of common stock �  (5,373) (5,912)

Balance at end of period $ (110,886) $ (111,377) $ (106,963)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 40,367 $ 32,519 $ 22,321
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Deferred income tax provision, net 6,176 18,603 14,945
Depreciation and amortization 14,487 11,552 8,283
Tax benefit attributable to option exercises 1,530 �  �  
Excess tax benefit attributable to stock options and restricted stock (934) (4,058) �  
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts on accounts receivable and fallouts 1,214 (1,721) 38
Gain on cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance policies (309) (521) (83)
Stock-based compensation 3,430 1,160 1,795
Amortization of alternative long-term incentive expense 641 867 �  
Deferred compensation expense 996 859 533
(Gain) loss on asset sales/disposals (406) 24 (38)
Supplemental executive retirement plans expense 2,129 4 �  
(Increase) decrease in operating assets, net of acquisitions:
Trade receivables, net (33,538) (10,207) 1,422
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 122 53 1,037
Income tax refund receivable 690 2,140 533
Other assets, net 143 111 (124)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 422 (1,282) (5,069)
Accrued payroll costs 8,256 2,125 6,861
Income taxes payable 2,275 (1,009) (41)
Other liabilities 1,079 729 (970)

Cash provided by operating activities 48,770 51,948 51,443

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash received 339 (136,732) (2,903)
Capital expenditures (11,417) (6,433) (5,304)
Premiums paid for company-owned life insurance (3,825) (3,643) (2,295)
Cash proceeds received upon surrender of company-owned life insurance �  2,603 �  
Release of restricted cash �  �  964
Cash proceeds from sale of assets 515 63 13

Cash used in investing activities (14,388) (144,142) (9,525)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank line of credit 343,057 443,615 157,835
Payments on bank line of credit (379,162) (392,180) (156,935)
Payment of loan financing costs �  (529) (250)
Repayment of capital expenditure financing (3,835) (3,330) (2,055)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 4,118 10,418 2,140
Excess tax benefit attributable to stock options and restricted stock 934 4,058 �  
Repurchases of common stock �  (5,373) (5,912)
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Cash (used in) provided by financing activities (34,888) 56,679 (5,177)

Change in cash and cash equivalents (506) (35,515) 36,741
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,589 37,104 363

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,083 $ 1,589 $ 37,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Operations

Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (�Kforce�) is a provider of professional staffing services and solutions to its customers in the following fields:
Technology, Finance and Accounting, Health and Life Sciences and Government. Kforce provides flexible staffing services and solutions on
both a temporary and full-time basis and also provides search services on both a contingency and retained basis. Kforce operates through its
corporate headquarters in Tampa, Florida as well its 67 field offices, which are located throughout the United States. One of our subsidiaries,
Kforce Global Solutions, Inc., provides outsourcing services internationally through an office maintained in Manila, Philippines. Our
international operations comprised less than 1% of net service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. There
were no international operations during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Kforce serves clients from the Fortune 1000, the federal government, local and regional companies and small to mid-sized companies.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Kforce have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (�GAAP�) and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�).

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Kforce Inc. and its subsidiaries. References in this document to �Kforce,� �the
Company,� �we,� �our� or �us� refer to Kforce and its subsidiaries, except where the context otherwise indicates. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Kforce classifies all highly liquid investments with an original initial maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts

Kforce has established a reserve for expected credit losses and fallouts on trade receivables based on past experience and estimates of potential
future write offs. Kforce performs an ongoing analysis of factors including recent write-off and delinquency trends, changes in economic
conditions, a specific analysis of material receivable balances that are past due, which is based on the receivable�s contractual terms and
concentration of accounts receivable among clients, in establishing this reserve. Trade receivables are written off by Kforce after all collection
efforts have been exhausted. The allowance as a percentage of gross accounts receivable was 1.8% and 2.0% as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, there was no individual client that had a receivable balance greater than 7.3% and 3.0%,
respectively, of gross accounts receivable.

Fixed Assets
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Fixed assets are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The cost of leasehold improvements is amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the terms of the related leases, which range from three to fifteen years.

Income Taxes

Kforce accounts for income taxes under the principles of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes. SFAS 109 requires the asset and liability approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. SFAS 109 requires
that unless it is �more likely than not� that a deferred tax asset can be utilized to offset future taxes, a valuation allowance must be recorded against
that asset. The tax benefits of deductions attributable to the employees� disqualifying dispositions of shares obtained from incentive stock
options, exercises of non-qualified options, and vesting of restricted stock are reflected as increases in additional paid-in capital.
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In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued FASB Interpretation (�FIN�) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes (�FIN 48�). This interpretation clarified the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS 109. This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Under this interpretation, the evaluation of
a tax position involves a two-step process. First, the enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained
upon examination, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step measures the benefit to be recorded from tax positions that
meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, whereby the enterprise determines the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement, and recognizes that benefit in its financial statements. FIN 48 was adopted by Kforce
effective January 1, 2007 and did not have a material impact on Kforce�s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Kforce uses fair value measurements in areas that include, but are not limited to, the allocation of purchase price consideration to the tangible
and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities; impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets, workers� compensation liabilities, share-based
compensation arrangements and our long-term debt. Kforce, using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, has
determined the estimated fair value of its financial instruments. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting data to develop the
estimates of fair value. The fair values of Kforce�s financial instruments are estimated based on current market rates and instruments with the
same risk and maturities. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other current assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values because of the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair value of long-term debt approximates its
carrying value due to the variable interest rate applicable to the debt.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Kforce performs an annual review to ensure that no impairment of goodwill exists or when events or circumstances dictate, more frequently. As
is more fully described in Note 5, Kforce completed its annual goodwill impairment analysis during each of the three years ended December 31,
2007 and determined that in each year, no adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill was required.

Identifiable intangible assets arising from certain of Kforce�s acquisitions include non-compete agreements, customer lists, contractual
relationships, customer contracts, trademarks and tradenames. Kforce has determined that the straight-line method is an appropriate
methodology to allocate the cost over the period of expected benefit, which ranges from 1 to 15 years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Kforce periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets including its identifiable intangible assets to determine if impairment has
occurred. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the period identified. Significant judgment is required to determine whether or not
impairment has occurred. The determination is made by evaluating expected future undiscounted cash flows or the anticipated recoverability of
costs incurred and, if necessary, determining the amount of the loss, if any, by evaluating the fair value of the assets. There were no impairment
charges recorded during the three years ended December 31, 2007.

Capitalized Software

Kforce purchases, and in certain cases develops, and implements new computer software to enhance the performance of its accounting and
operating systems. Direct internal costs, such as payroll and payroll-related costs, and external costs incurred during the development stage of
each project are capitalized and classified as capitalized software. Kforce capitalized development-stage implementation costs of $5,592, $2,331
and $3,134 during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Capitalized software development costs are classified as other assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are being
amortized over the estimated useful lives of the software using the straight-line method, which range from 1 to 5 years.

Commissions

Our associates make placements and earn commissions as a percentage of actual revenue or gross profit pursuant to a calendar-year-basis
commission plan. The amount of commissions paid as a percentage of revenue or gross profit increases as volume increases. Kforce accrues
commissions for actual revenue or gross profit at a percentage equal to the percent of total expected commissions payable to total revenue or
gross profit for the year.
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Stock-Based Compensation

As of January 1, 2006, Kforce accounts for stock-based compensation under the provisions of SFAS 123R, Share-Based Payment (�SFAS 123R�).
This statement requires Kforce to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the
grant-date fair value of the award. That cost is recognized over the period in which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for
the award, which is usually the vesting period. No compensation cost is recognized for equity instruments for which employees do not render the
requisite service.

Prior to January 1, 2006, Kforce accounted for stock-based compensation under the intrinsic-value-based method prescribed by Accounting
Principles Board (�APB�) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (�APB 25�), and disclosed the additional compensation
expense that would have been recorded if the fair value based accounting had been used for options granted to employees and non-employees
under the provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (�SFAS 123�).

The table below illustrates the effects on Kforce�s 2005 net income and earnings per share had compensation cost for Kforce�s option plans been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates, as prescribed by SFAS 123.

Pro Forma
Year Ended

December 31,
2005

Net income:
As reported (a) $ 22,321
Compensation expense per SFAS 123, net of related tax benefits (4,359)

Pro forma net income $ 17,962

Earnings per share:
Basic:
As reported $ 0.58
Pro forma $ 0.47
Diluted:
As reported $ 0.55
Pro forma $ 0.45

(a) Included in the calculation of net income is expense related to the amortization of Kforce�s restricted stock plan, which is treated the same
under SFAS 123 and APB 25 and, as a result, has no impact on the pro forma net income for 2005.

For purposes of determining the compensation expense per SFAS 123 in the pro-forma disclosure above, the fair value of each option was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions used for grants during the
applicable periods: dividend yield of 0.0%, risk-free interest rates of 3.9% for options granted, a weighted average expected option term of 4.7
years, and a volatility factor of 50%. The weighted average expected option term and volatility were based on the historical average term of
options and the historical volatility of Kforce stock.

Workers� Compensation

Except for states which require participation in state-operated insurance funds, Kforce retains the economic burden for the first $250 per
occurrence in workers� compensation claims. Workers� compensation includes ongoing healthcare and indemnity coverage for claims and may be
paid over numerous years following the date of injury. Workers� compensation expense includes the insurance premiums for claims in excess of
$250, claims administration fees charged by Kforce�s workers� compensation administrator, premiums paid to state-operated insurance funds and
an estimate for Kforce�s liability for Incurred but Not Reported (�IBNR�) claims and for the ongoing development of existing claims.

Kforce estimates its workers� compensation liability based upon historical claims experience, actuarially-determined loss development factors
and qualitative considerations such as claims management activities.

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 69



Taxes Assessed by Governmental Agencies � Revenue Producing Transactions

Kforce adopted Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No. 06-3 (�EITF 06-3�), Disclosure Requirements for Taxes Assessed by a
Governmental Authority on Revenue-Producing Transactions, on January 1, 2007, which did not have an impact on Kforce�s consolidated
financial statements. Kforce collects sales tax for various taxing authorities and it is our policy to record these amounts on a net basis, thus,
amounts are not included in net service revenues.
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Health Insurance

Kforce retains liability up to $250 annually for each health insurance participant. Health insurance costs are accrued using estimates to
approximate the liability for reported claims and claims incurred but not reported, which is primarily based upon an evaluation of historical
claims experience, and a review of the expected changes in health insurance costs.

Revenue Recognition

We earn revenue from two primary sources: Flexible billings and Search fees. Net service revenues as presented in the Consolidated Statements
of Income represent services rendered to customers less credits, discounts, rebates and allowances for fallouts. Revenue includes reimbursements
of travel and out-of-pocket expenses (�billable expenses�) with equivalent amounts of expense recorded in direct costs of services.

Flexible billings are recognized as the services are provided by Kforce�s temporary employees who are Kforce�s legal employees while they are
working on assignments. Kforce pays all related costs of employment, including workers� compensation insurance, state and federal
unemployment taxes, social security and certain fringe benefits.

Search fees are recognized by Kforce when employment candidates accept offers of permanent employment. Kforce records revenue net of an
estimated reserve for �fallouts,� which is based upon Kforce�s historical fallout experience. Fallouts occur when the candidate does not remain
employed with the client through the contingency period, which is typically a period of ninety days or less.

Our Government Solutions segment typically generates its revenue from time and materials contractual arrangements, which is recognized to the
extent of the contractually established bill rates multiplied by hours worked, as services are provided.

Accounting for Derivatives

Kforce�s policy is to designate at a derivative�s inception the specific assets, liabilities, or future commitments being hedged and monitor the
derivative to determine if it remains an effective hedge. Kforce does not enter into or hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. In the
unlikely event that the counterparty fails to perform under the contract, Kforce bears the credit risk that payments due to Kforce, if applicable,
may not be collected. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, Kforce did not have any active derivative instruments nor did Kforce engage in any
hedging activities during the years then ended.

Business Combinations

Kforce utilizes the purchase method in accounting for acquisitions whereby the total purchase price is first allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, and any remaining purchase price is allocated to goodwill. Kforce recognizes intangible assets apart from goodwill if they
arise from contractual or other legal rights, or if they are capable of being separated or divided from the acquired entity and sold, transferred,
licensed, rented, or exchanged. Assumptions and estimates are used in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Valuation of intangible assets acquired requires that we use significant judgment in determining fair value and whether
such intangibles are amortizable and, if the asset is amortizable, the period and the method by which the intangible asset will be amortized.
Changes in the initial assumptions could lead to changes in amortization charges recorded in our financial statements. Additionally, estimates for
purchase price allocations may change as subsequent information becomes available.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed as earnings divided by weighted average common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings
per share includes the dilutive effects of stock options and other potentially dilutive securities such as non-vested stock grants using the treasury
stock method. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three years ended December 31,
2007:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Numerator:
Net earnings $ 40,367 $ 32,519 $ 22,321
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Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding�basic 41,308 40,189 38,527
Common stock equivalents from options, SARS, PARS and restricted stock 986 1,823 2,089

Weighted average shares outstanding�diluted 42,294 42,012 40,616

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.98 $ 0.81 $ 0.58

Diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.77 $ 0.55
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Options and other share-based awards to purchase 826, 1,201 and 2,549 shares of common stock were not included in the computations of
diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, because these options would have had an
anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations (�SFAS 141R�), which replaces SFAS No. 141. This statement
retains the purchase method of accounting for acquisitions but establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer entity recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired (including intangibles), the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity. This standard also changes the recognition of assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising from contingencies,
and requires the expensing of acquisition-related costs as incurred, among others. The statement will apply prospectively to business
combinations occurring in our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (�SFAS 159�). SFAS 159
provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. It also establishes presentation and disclosure
requirements to facilitate comparisons between companies using different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. The
statement is effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008. Although we currently do not anticipate adopting the provisions of SFAS
159 to any specific assets or liabilities, we are still finalizing our assessment.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements (�SFAS 157�). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement is effective for our fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2008. Although we are currently finalizing our assessment of the impact adopting SFAS 157 will have on our financial statements, we
believe the impact is limited to the fair value measurements of our workers� compensation liability, credit facility and capital lease obligations.
However, we do not believe that this will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 157-2 (�FSP 157-2�). FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for
non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years. In February 2008, the FASB
also issued FSP No. 157-1 (�FSP 157-1�) that would exclude leasing transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 13, �Accounting for Leases�,
and its related interpretive accounting pronouncements. We do not expect the SFAS 157 related guidance to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

2. Fixed Assets

Major classifications of fixed assets and related asset lives are summarized as follows:

DECEMBER 31,
USEFUL LIFE 2007 2006

Land $ 1,310 $ 1,310
Furniture and equipment 5-7 years 7,790 7,558
Computer equipment 3-5 years 2,866 2,241
Leasehold improvements 3-15 years 5,878 5,268
Capital leases 3-5 years 8,960 8,268

26,804 24,645
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 13,449 12,035

$ 13,355 $ 12,610

Depreciation and amortization expense during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $5,322, $4,251 and $3,035, respectively.
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3. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005

Current:
Federal $ 18,426 $ 1,565 $ (223)
State 1,479 319 123
Deferred 6,176 19,486 14,945
Decrease in valuation allowance �  (883) �  

$ 26,081 $ 20,487 $ 14,845

The provision (benefit) for income taxes shown above varied from the statutory federal income tax rates for those periods as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006 2005

Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal tax effect 3.4 4.6 4.6
Non-deductible meals and entertainment 0.9 0.7 0.1
Alternative Minimum Tax �  �  (0.6)
Other �  �  0.8
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance �  (1.6) �  

Effective tax rate 39.3% 38.7% 39.9%

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

Deferred taxes, current:
Assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,271 $ 1,134
Accrued liabilities 2,033 3,377
Federal net operating loss carryforward 2,063 2,063
State net operating loss carryforward 725 1,845
Deferred compensation 359 308
Other 2,672 854

9,123 9,581
Liabilities:
Prepaid expenses (714) (689)

Net current deferred tax asset 8,409 8,892

Deferred taxes, non-current:
Assets:
Deferred compensation 5,751 4,701
Federal net operating loss carryforward 1,418 3,403
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Other 308 279

7,477 8,383

Liabilities:
Depreciation of fixed assets (4,889) (2,853)
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets (9,212) (6,059)

(14,101) (8,912)

Non-current deferred tax liability, net (6,624) (529)
Valuation allowance �  (475)

Net non-current deferred tax liability (6,624) (1,004)

Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 1,785 $ 7,888
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At December 31, 2007, Kforce had Federal net operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�) of approximately $9,943 related to the recording of Hall
Kinion Federal NOLs, which expire in varying amounts through 2024. Further, Kforce has approximately $11,895 of state tax NOLs at
December 31, 2007, which will be carried forward to be offset against future state taxable income. The state tax NOLs expire in varying
amounts through 2022.

Kforce incurred NOLs for both Federal and state income tax purposes in 2004, 2002 and 2001. For accounting purposes, the estimated tax
effects of such NOLs, plus other timing differences, result in current and non-current deferred tax assets. However, a determination must be
made that it is �more likely than not� that the NOLs will be utilized for tax purposes, or valuation allowances must be established to offset such
assets. There is no valuation allowances placed against current and non-current deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007. The reduction in
the valuation allowance during 2007 did not impact the income tax provision as it related to adjustments in purchase accounting. During the
quarter ended December 31, 2006, Kforce recognized a tax benefit totaling $883 related to the reversal of a valuation allowance based upon
Kforce receiving IRS approval of a tax method change.

Kforce is periodically subject to U.S. Internal Revenue Service audits as well as state and other local income tax audits for various tax years. At
December 31, 2006, Kforce Government Solutions, Inc. (formerly known as PCCI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce, had ongoing audits
being conducted by the states of New Jersey and New York. These audits were settled in 2007 with no material adverse assessments. Kforce
Government Solutions, Inc. also had an ongoing audit being conducted by the IRS as of December 31, 2006 related to its December 31, 2004
Federal income tax return. On January 31, 2007, this audit was settled with no changes to the previously filed 2004 tax return. As of
December 31, 2007, Kforce Global Solutions, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce Government Holdings, Inc., had an ongoing audit of their
2006 tax return with the Philippines Bureau of Inland Revenue. No assessments related to this audit have been proposed as of December 31,
2007.

Uncertain Income Tax Positions

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity�s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109 and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for financial
statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, the impact of an uncertain income tax position
on the income tax return must be recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing
authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Additionally, FIN 48
provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.

The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in Kforce recognizing any increase or decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits at January 1,
2007, which was $877. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 877
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year �  
Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year �  
Additions for tax positions of prior years 14
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (243)
Settlements (131)

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 517

The entire amount of these unrecognized tax benefits, if recognized, would result in a decrease to goodwill recorded in purchase business
combinations. No significant changes to Kforce�s uncertain tax positions are expected to significantly change over the next 12-month period.

Kforce recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, interest and penalties recognized and the cumulative amount accrued as of year-end were not significant.

42

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 77



Table of Contents

Kforce and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U. S. federal jurisdiction and various states. One of Kforce�s subsidiaries files in a
foreign jurisdiction. With few exceptions, Kforce is no longer subject to federal, state, local, or non-U.S income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2002.

4. Other Assets

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies $ 16,527 $ 12,393
Capitalized software, net of amortization 13,471 8,431
Prepaid rent � headquarters, net of amortization 852 963
Deferred loan costs, net of amortization 579 697
Escrow deposits �  10,000
Other non-current assets 553 509

$ 31,982 $ 32,993

The cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance policies relates to policies maintained by Kforce on certain participants in the
Deferred Compensation Plan, which could be used to fund the related obligations (Note 11). In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on
Issue No. 06-5 (�EITF 06-5�), Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance � Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, which addresses the amount that can be reported as an asset under a company�s life insurance policies based
upon the amount that can be realized under the contractual terms on a policy by policy basis. We adopted EITF 06-5 in the first quarter of fiscal
2007, and it did not have any impact on Kforce�s consolidated financial statements.

Kforce capitalized software purchases as well as direct costs associated with software developed for internal use of approximately $8,681 and
$3,185 during 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in 2007 was primarily a result of the implementation of additional back office software
modules, which went live during August 2007. Accumulated amortization on capitalized software was $8,755 and $6,788 as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Amortization expense on capitalized software during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$3,641, $2,342 and $1,459, respectively.

During 2007, approximately $9,647 of the escrow deposits was released to the sellers of Bradson and PCCI. The remaining amount of
approximately $353 was received by Kforce for certain claims as provided for under the Merger Agreement and the related Escrow and
Exchange Agent Agreement.

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Kforce completed its annual tests for goodwill impairment and determined that no impairment existed during the three years ended
December 31, 2007.

On December 31, 2006, Kforce completed a valuation of its four reporting units: Finance and Accounting, Technology, Health and Life Sciences
and Government Solutions. Kforce utilized a discounted cash flow method and a market approach (the guideline public company method) and
considered the results of each to value its reporting units. The discounted cash flow method is an income-based approach whereby the value of
the reporting unit is determined by discounting each reporting unit�s expected cash flows using an appropriate discount rate. In the 2006 fair
value determination, Kforce utilized a weighted average cost of capital of 13.1% to 15.5% depending upon the circumstances specific to each
reporting unit. The weighted average cost of capital was determined using a cost of equity ranging from 13.9% to 16.2% and an after-tax cost of
debt of 3.9% in order to value each of its reporting units under the discounted cash flow method. The cost of equity and after-tax cost of debt
was appropriately weighted to derive a weighted average cost of capital. The guideline public company method is an approach that applies
pricing multiples derived from comparable publicly traded guideline companies to the respective reporting unit to determine its value. In the
2006 fair value determination, Kforce utilized invested capital/revenue multiples ranging from .40 to 1.50, invested capital/EBITDA multiples
ranging from 4.0 to 10.0 and invested capital/EBIT multiples ranging from 5.5 to 10.0 in order to value each of its reporting units under the
guideline public company method. The results of that valuation in 2006 indicated that the fair value of each of Kforce�s reporting units
significantly exceeded the carrying values of those reporting units and, as a result, Kforce concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill.
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Kforce carried forward the detailed determination of fair value to December 31, 2007 based on the following factors: (i) the assets and liabilities
that make up the reporting unit have not changed significantly since the most recent fair value determination; (ii) the most recent fair value
determination as of December 31, 2006 resulted in an amount that exceeded the carrying amount of each reporting unit by a substantial margin
(fair values ranging from 127% to 275% of carrying value) and (iii) based on an analysis of the events that have occurred and circumstances that
have changed since the most recent fair value determination, the likelihood that a current fair value determination would be less than the current
carrying amount of the reporting unit is remote. This analysis included a comparison of the reporting unit�s actual operating results during the
year ended December 31, 2007 with the forecasts utilized in the 2006 fair value determination, an assessment of Kforce�s continued ability to
achieve the forecasts utilized in the 2006 fair value determination for 2008 and beyond, an assessment of the continued propriety of the
assumptions used in the 2006 fair value determination, and a review of market-based factors.

The following table contains a disclosure of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total and for each reporting unit for the three years
ended December 31, 2007:

Technology
Finance and
Accounting

Health and
Life Sciences

Government
Solutions Total

Balance as of December 31, 2004 $ 75,992 $ 19,832 $ 12,529 $ �  $ 108,353
Goodwill acquired during the year�Vista 16,442 �  �  �  16,442
Adjustment to Hall Kinion Goodwill 177 32 �  �  209

Balance as of December 31, 2005 92,611 19,864 12,529 �  125,004
Goodwill acquired during the year�PCCI 32,814 �  �  7,408 40,222
Goodwill acquired during the year�Bradson �  �  �  51,908 51,908
Adjustment to Vista Goodwill (a) 5,205 �  �  �  5,205
Adjustment to Hall Kinion Goodwill (32) (5) �  �  (37)

Balance as of December 31, 2006 $ 130,598 $ 19,859 $ 12,529 $ 59,316 $ 222,302
Adjustment to PCCI Goodwill (b) 3,597 �  �  813 4,410
Adjustment to Hall Kinion Goodwill (503) (93) �  �  (596)
Adjustment to Bradson Goodwill (c) �  �  �  11,493 11,493

Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 133,692 $ 19,766 $ 12,529 $ 71,622 $ 237,609

(a) The 450 shares of Kforce common stock that were held in escrow were released in accordance with the terms of the agreement, which
resulted in an increase to goodwill of $5,205.

(b) The adjustment to goodwill is related to the resolution of certain escrow items in accordance with the terms of the agreement, which was
principally the release of escrow to the sellers.

(c) This adjustment is comprised of two principal components: (i) $5,000 that was released by Kforce out of escrow in accordance with the
terms of the agreement and (ii) $6,462 that resulted from the finalization of the Bradson purchase price allocation. The assumptions used in
the purchase price allocation are more fully described in Note 6.

As of December 31, 2007, there are no remaining amounts in escrow.

Other Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, intangible assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consisted of non-compete
agreements, employment agreements, trade names, trademarks, customer relationships, customer contracts and customer lists. Indefinite lived
intangible assets, which consist of trade names and trademarks, amounted to $4.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. All of the
intangible assets represented less than 5% of total assets.

Amortization expense on intangible assets for the three years ended December 31, 2007 was $5,524, $4,885 and $3,502, respectively. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, accumulated amortization on intangible assets was $16,620 and $11,096, respectively.

Amortization expense for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is expected to be $3,608, $1,436, $981, $488 and $384, respectively.
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6. Acquisitions

The results of the acquisitions below have been included in Kforce�s consolidated financial statements since the respective acquisition date.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Bradson Corporation

During October 2006, Kforce entered into and closed a Stock Purchase Agreement (the �Stock Purchase Agreement�) by and among Kforce,
Bradson Corporation (�Bradson�), Kforce Government Holdings Inc., a Florida corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce (�KGH�),
Ronald M. Bradley, individually and on behalf of the other shareholders.

Bradson was a privately held company based in Arlington, Virginia, and has been a prime contractor of Finance and Accounting professional
services to the Federal government for over 20 years. Bradson�s primary customers include the Department of Defense and the Department of
Homeland Security.

Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, KGH acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Bradson for a purchase price of
approximately $73,325 (the �Purchase Price�), which was subject to Bradson delivering a minimum of $4,000 in working capital at the time of
closing. The cash consideration paid by KGH was comprised of Kforce�s cash on hand and borrowings under Kforce�s Credit Facility. On the
closing date, KGH placed $5,000 of the total Purchase Price into escrow to secure Bradson�s indemnification obligations and to satisfy certain
adjustments to the Purchase Price. As described in Note 5, the $5,000 escrow was fully resolved during 2007 resulting in an increase to
goodwill.

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net assets acquired and intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition
(including subsequent goodwill adjustments described in Note 5):

Goodwill $ 63,401
Acquisition intangibles 5,735
Net assets acquired 4,189

Total purchase price $ 73,325

As of December 31, 2006, Kforce preliminarily assigned $11,960 of the excess purchase price to customer relationships and contracts, which
were being amortized over a weighted average useful life of 10 years. In addition, Kforce allocated $182 of the excess purchase price to
non-compete agreements that are being amortized over a weighted average useful life of 5 years and $54 to an employment agreement with a
useful life of 2 years. Although Kforce had not finalized its valuation as of December 31, 2006, Kforce considered cumulative knowledge
through our prior acquisitions and an initial assessment of all potential identifiable intangible assets, which included a review of customer
relationships and specific contracts acquired, to determine an estimated fair value allocation.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, Kforce finalized its valuation and recorded adjustments to the preliminary values discussed above. Kforce
determined the fair value of the customer relationship to be $3,911, customer contracts to be $1,589 and the non-compete and employment
agreements to be $235. These adjustments cumulatively resulted in an increase of goodwill of $6,462. Kforce determined the fair value of the
customer relationship using an excess earnings method, which is based on the present value of the projected after-tax cash flows using a discount
rate of 16.6%, after deducting the fair value of the customer contracts. The fair value of the customer contracts, which had remaining terms of up
to 5 years, was determined by Kforce by analyzing the present value of the projected after-tax cash flows of each contract using a discount rate
of 16.1%.

The $63,401 of remaining excess purchase price has been assigned to goodwill, which was allocated to the Government Solutions reporting unit.
The significance of the goodwill balance was partly due to the value related to the acquired workforce. This goodwill is not deductible for tax
purposes.

PCCI Holdings, Inc.
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On January 31, 2006, Kforce acquired PCCI Holdings, Inc. (�PCCI�), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the �Merger Agreement�) by
and among Kforce, Trevose Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce (�Merger Sub�), PCCI
Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, H.I.G. Pinkerton, Inc., a Cayman company, in its capacity as Representative, William D. Pinkerton and
Richard J. Quigley. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Kforce acquired all of the outstanding stock of PCCI for $63,320 (the �Purchase
Price) paid in cash at closing, subject to certain adjustments as provided for in the Merger Agreement. On the closing date, Kforce placed into
escrow $6,000 of the total Purchase Price to secure PCCI�s indemnification obligations, and to satisfy certain adjustments to the Purchase Price.
As described in Note 5, the escrow was fully resolved during 2007 resulting in an increase to goodwill.
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PCCI was a privately held company based in Trevose, Pennsylvania that, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries (primarily Pinkerton Computer
Consultants, Inc.), provided information technology staffing services to commercial clients located throughout the United Stated and the Federal
government, which accounted for approximately 35% of PCCI�s revenue. As a result of the above acquisition, Kforce expanded its presence in
technology staffing in both the Federal government and commercial sectors.

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net assets acquired and intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition
(including subsequent goodwill adjustments described in Note 5):

Goodwill $ 44,632
Acquisition intangibles 4,393
Trademarks 3,220
Net assets acquired 11,075

Total purchase price $ 63,320

Kforce determined the fair value of the trademarks to be $3,220 (an indefinite lived asset), government customer relationships to be $2,230,
commercial customer relationships to be $950, government contracts of $894 and other intangibles of $319. Kforce determined the fair value of
the trademarks using a relief from royalty method, which is based on the present value of the projected cost savings attributable to the ownership
of the trademarks. Kforce utilized royalty rates ranging from .25% to 1.0% of revenues, which was based on a review of publicly available
royalty rates for staffing services, and discount rates ranging from 15.2% to 15.6%. Kforce determined the fair value of the government and
commercial customer relationships using an excess earnings method and deducting the value of the government contracts from this amount. The
excess earnings method was based on the present value of the projected after-tax cash flows using a discount rate of 14.9% and 16.0% for the
government and commercial divisions, respectively. Kforce determined the fair value of the government contracts by analyzing the present value
of the projected after-tax cash flows using a discount rate of 13.9%.

The $44,632 of remaining excess purchase price has been assigned to goodwill, of which $36,411 and $8,221 were allocated to the Technology
and Government Solutions reporting units, respectively. The significance of the goodwill balance was partly due to the value related to the
acquired workforce. This goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for Kforce gives effect to the acquisitions of Bradson and PCCI, which
occurred during 2006, and Vista, which occurred during 2005, as if they had occurred on January 1, 2005. These unaudited pro forma results
have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the results of operations that actually would have
resulted had the acquisitions occurred on the date indicated, or that may result in the future.

2006 2005
Revenues $ 968,642 $ 923,108
Net income $ 38,212 $ 33,063
Basic income per share $ .95 $ .85
Diluted income per share $ .91 $ .81
Basic shares outstanding 40,189 38,762
Diluted shares outstanding 42,012 40,850

7. Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

Accounts payable $ 15,777 $ 14,324
Accrued liabilities 9,445 10,476
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8. Accrued Payroll Costs

Accrued payroll costs consisted of the following:

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

Payroll and benefits $ 40,648 $ 30,885
Payroll taxes 7,045 9,965
Accrued health insurance payable 2,615 2,642
Workers� compensation 3,305 2,963

$ 53,613 $ 46,455

9. Credit Facility

On October 2, 2006, Kforce entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America, N.A.
(the �Credit Facility�). Kforce�s maximum borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to $140,000, which includes a revolving loan tranche of
up to $125,000 (the �Revolving Loan Amount�) and a $15,000 sub-limit for letters of credit. In April 2007, an additional revolving loan tranche
(the �Additional Availability Amount�) that allowed up to $25,000 was retired by Kforce.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable less certain minimum availability reserves and bear
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.25% or the prime rate. Letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility require Kforce to pay a fronting fee
equal to .125% of the amount of each letter of credit issued plus 1.25% per annum of the total amount of letters of credit outstanding. To the
extent that Kforce has unused availability under the Credit Facility, an unused line fee is required to be paid equal to 0.25% of the average
unused balance on a monthly basis. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are principally secured by our accounts receivable but are also secured
by substantially all of the assets of Kforce. Under the Credit Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain minimum availability and fixed charge
coverage ratio requirements. The Credit Facility expires during November 2011.

10. Other Long-Term Liabilities

DECEMBER 31,
2007 2006

Deferred compensation plan (Note 11) $ 13,612 $ 11,230
Accrued rent 2,340 2,454
Supplemental executive retirement plan (Note 11) 1,718 4
Supplemental executive retirement health plan (Note 11) 416 �  
Other 392 �  
Alternative long term incentive �  867
Corporate income tax payable�Federal �  586

$ 18,478 $ 15,141

Kforce has applied the provisions of FASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for Leases (�SFAS 13�), to account for lease arrangements that contain
scheduled rent escalations by recognizing rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the straight-line rent
expense and the cash payment made is recorded as a rental obligation, which amounted to $2,299 and $2,202 as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively, and is classified within accrued rent in the table above.

During February 2006, Kforce granted to certain named executive officers an alternative long-term incentive (the �ALTI�). The terms of the ALTI
grant state that the ALTI vests fully on January 2, 2008, and the total ALTI shall increase or decrease in value equal to the increase or decrease
in the price of Kforce�s common stock over the period from January 1, 2006 to January 2, 2008. As a result of the anticipated changes in the fair
value of the obligation, Kforce has determined the fair value as of each reporting period using a Monte Carlo simulation and amortized this value
over the vesting period of February 22, 2006 to January 2, 2008. The Monte Carlo simulation was computed using a risk-free interest rate of
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5.01% and a volatility factor of 42.78%. Kforce recorded compensation expense in the amount of $641 and $867 for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Kforce has recorded an obligation of $1,508 and $867 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The obligation as of December 31, 2007 was classified in other current debt in
the consolidated balance sheets as the obligation was paid to the named executive officers on January 2, 2008.
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11. Employee Benefit Plans

401(k) Savings Plans

Kforce has a qualified defined contribution 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (the �Kforce 401(k) Plan�) covering substantially all Kforce Inc.
employees. Employer matching contributions are discretionary and are funded annually as approved by the Board of Directors. Assets of the
Kforce 401(k) Plan are held in trust for the sole benefit of employees and/or their beneficiaries.

Prior to the acquisition of Bradson in October 2006, Bradson terminated the qualified defined contribution 401(k) Plan that previously covered
employees of Bradson (the �Bradson Corporation 401(k) Plan�). On October 2, 2006, Kforce created the Kforce Government Practice Plan, a
qualified defined contribution 401(k) retirement savings Plan (the �Government 401(k) Plan�) to cover substantially all of the legacy Bradson
employees. During 2007, PCCI and Bradson were merged into Kforce Government Solutions (�KGS�), which adopted the Government 401(k)
Plan. Employer matching contributions are discretionary and are funded annually as approved by the Board of Directors. Assets of the
Government 401(k) Plan are held in trust for the sole benefit of employees and/or their beneficiaries.

Kforce has accrued a match of $1,179, $893 and $813 for the above plans� years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
Kforce 401(k) Plan and Government 401(k) Plan held 450, 556 and 660 shares of Kforce�s common stock as of December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005, respectively. These shares represented approximately 1.08%, 1.36% and 1.71% of Kforce�s outstanding shares as of December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Kforce has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all employees to purchase stock at a 5% discount from the market price of Kforce�s
common stock at the end of the three month purchase period and without commissions on the purchases. Employees are eligible to participate in
the plan as of the next plan enrollment date following their date of hire. Pursuant to the plan, Kforce issued 86, 172 and 128 shares of common
stock at an average purchase price of $12.80, $9.30 and $7.57 per share during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. These shares were transferred to the plan from Kforce�s treasury stock.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Kforce has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which eligible management and highly-compensated key employees, as
defined by IRS regulations, may elect to defer part of their compensation to later years. These amounts are classified as accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities if due to be paid within the next year or as other long-term liabilities if due to be paid out after the next year or upon
retirement or termination of employment. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, amounts included in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
related to the deferred compensation plan totaled $687 and $428, respectively. Amounts included in other long-term liabilities related to the
deferred compensation plan totaled $13,612 and $11,230 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Kforce has insured the lives of certain
participants in the deferred compensation plan to assist in the funding of the deferred compensation liability. The cash surrender value of these
company-owned life insurance policies, $16,527 and $12,393 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are classified as other assets (Note
4). Compensation expense of $871, $256 and $700 was recognized for the plan for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

During 2006, Kforce recorded a reclassification adjustment to correctly classify premiums paid for company-owned life insurance policies from
operating activities to investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, to
correctly report these amounts.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Effective December 31, 2006, Kforce implemented a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the �SERP�) for the benefit of certain named
executive officers. The primary goals of the SERP are to create an additional wealth accumulation opportunity, restore lost qualified pension
benefits due to government limitations and retain the named executive officers. The SERP is a nonqualified benefit plan, and does not include
elective deferrals of covered executive officers� salaries. The SERP is funded entirely by Kforce, and benefits are taxable to the executive officer
upon receipt and deductible by Kforce when paid. Benefits payable under the SERP are targeted at 45% of the covered executive officer�s
average salary and bonus from the three years where the executive earned the highest salary and bonus during the last ten years of employment,
which is subject to adjustment for early retirement and the participant�s vesting percentage. Benefits under the SERP are normally paid for the
life of the covered executive officer, but may be commuted to a lump sum present value payment or 10-year annuity, as elected by the covered
executive officer upon commencement of participation in the SERP. Normal retirement age under the SERP is defined as age 65. Vesting under
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the plan is defined as 100% upon the attainment of age 55 and 10 years of service and 0% prior to the attainment of age 55 and 10 years of
service. Certain conditions allow for early retirement as early as age 55. Full vesting also occurs if a participant with five years or more of
service is terminated by Kforce without good cause. The benefits under the SERP are reduced for a participant that has not reached age 62 with
10 years of service or age 55 with 25 years of service with a percentage reduction up to the normal retirement age. None of the benefits earned
pursuant to the SERP are attributable to services provided prior to December 31, 2006.
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SERP Obligation

The SERP obligation, which was determined based upon actuarial calculations as of the beginning and end of the year, and the net periodic
benefit cost recorded by Kforce for the SERP for the year ended December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4
Service cost 1,714
Interest cost �  
Plan amendment �  
Actuarial (gain)/loss �  
Benefits paid �  

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 1,718

None of the above benefit obligation was funded as of December 31, 2007.

Assumptions

Weighted average assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Discount rate (a) 5.75%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets (b) �  
Average assumed rate of compensation increase 2.00%

(a) The discount rate is based upon the yield of a portfolio of high quality, long-term corporate bonds as of the end of each respective fiscal
year with a maturity commensurate with the expected payout of the SERP obligation.

(b) Due to the SERP being unfunded at December 31, 2007 and 2006, Kforce has not determined the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets. Once funded, Kforce will determine the long-term rate of return on plan assets by determining the composition of the asset
portfolio, the historical long-term investment performance and current market conditions.

Contributions

There is no requirement for Kforce to fund the SERP and, as a result, no contributions were made to the plan during the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Kforce currently anticipates funding the SERP during the year ended December 31, 2008.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Benefit payments by the SERP, which reflect anticipated future service of the named executive officers, are expected to be paid (undiscounted)
as follows:

PROJECTED ANNUAL
BENEFIT

PAYMENTS
2008 $ �  
2009 �  
2010 �  
2011 �  
2012 �  
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2013 -2017 2,925
Thereafter 40,018
Supplemental Executive Retirement Health Plan

Effective April 20, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the Supplemental Executive Retirement Health Plan (�SERHP�) to provide
postretirement health and welfare benefits to certain executives. The vesting and eligibility requirements mirror that of the SERP and no funding
is required by Kforce or the participants. The expected postretirement benefit obligation for the SERHP was $1,311 as of the date of plan
approval. This liability is being accrued ratably based upon the anticipated vesting date of the participants, which amounted to $416 as of
December 31, 2007. Consistent with the SERP, none of the benefits earned are attributable to services provided prior to the effective date.
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The annual health care trend rate used to measure the expected cost of the benefits covered by the SERHP was 11.0% in 2007 and declined in
0.5% decrements to 6.0% in 2017 and beyond. A 1% increase in the assumed health care cost trend would have increased service and interest
cost by $117 and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $120 as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. A 1% decrease in
the assumed health care cost trend would have decreased service and interest cost by $86 and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
by $87 as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31, 2007, Kforce recorded a net periodic
postretirement healthcare benefit cost of $416.

12. Stock Incentive Plans

In 1994, Kforce established the Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan that allows the issuance of Incentive Stock Options. The Employee
Incentive Stock Option Plan was subsequently amended in 1996 to allow for the issuance of Nonqualified Stock Options, Stock Appreciation
Rights and Restricted Stock. The Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan expired in March of 2005.

During 1995, Kforce established the Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, which authorized the issuance to non-employee directors of
options to purchase common stock. The Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan expired in October of 2005.

On June 20, 2006, at the annual meeting of the shareholders of Kforce, the shareholders approved the Stock Incentive Plan. The Stock Incentive
Plan was previously adopted by the board of directors on April 28, 2006, subject to the approval of the shareholders of Kforce. The aggregate
number of shares of common stock that may be subject to awards under the Stock Incentive Plan, subject to adjustment upon a change in
capitalization, is 3,000. The Stock Incentive Plan terminates on April 28, 2016. Vesting of equity instruments issued under the Stock Incentive
Plan is determined on a grant by grant basis.

Stock Options

A summary of stock option activity under all of Kforce�s plans for the three years ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

EMPLOYEE
INCENTIVE

STOCK OPTION
PLAN

NON-
EMPLOYEE
DIRECTOR

STOCK OPTION
PLAN

STOCK
INCENTIVE

PLAN TOTAL

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EXERCISE

PRICE
PER

SHARE

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

FAIR VALUE
OF

OPTIONS
GRANTED

TOTAL
INTRINSIC

VALUE
OF

OPTIONS
EXERCISED

Outstanding as of
December 31, 2004 6,083 314 �  6,397 $ 9.03
Granted 390 �  �  390 $ 11.00 $ 4.93
Exercised (295) (124) �  (419) $ 5.10 $ 2,282
Forfeited/Cancelled (179) �  �  (179) $ 13.93

Outstanding as of
December 31, 2005 5,999 190 �  6,189 $ 9.28
Granted �  �  60 60 $ 12.20 $ 8.06
Exercised (1,694) (47) �  (1,741) $ 5.99 $ 14,624
Forfeited/Cancelled (144) �  �  (144) $ 11.42

Outstanding as of
December 31, 2006 4,161 143 60 4,364 $ 10.56
Granted �  �  53 53 $ 13.77 $ 9.53
Exercised (534) (2) �  (536) $ 7.68 $ 4,068
Forfeited/Cancelled (25) (30) �  (55) $ 14.08

Outstanding as of
December 31, 2007 3,602 111 113 3,826 $ 10.96

�  �  113 113
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Unvested awards as of
December 31, 2007

Exercisable at December 31,
2007 3,602 111 �  3,713 $ 10.90
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Kforce uses the Black Scholes option pricing model to derive the fair value of options granted. The following assumptions were used in the
valuation of options granted during the years ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Expected term (a) 6.3 yrs 3.0 � 6.9 yrs 4.7 yrs
Expected volatility (b) 73% 71% � 74% 50%
Expected dividends (c) 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate 4.5% 4.9% � 5.0% 3.9%

(a) Weighted average exercise terms are based upon historical exercise behavior for Kforce stock options and may vary based upon the
applicable employee group exercise patterns.

(b) Volatility is based upon the historical volatility of Kforce�s common stock during a term commensurate with the expected term of the
option.

(c) The dividend yield is based upon Kforce not historically paying dividends on its common stock.
(d) The risk-free rate is based upon treasury yields with similar terms.
Options expire at the end of ten years from the date of grant. Kforce issues new shares upon exercise of options.

The following table summarizes information about employee and director stock options issued under all plans as of December 31, 2007:

OUTSTANDING

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES NUMBER OF AWARDS (SHARES)

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL

LIFE (YEARS)

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EXERCISE

PRICE
($)

TOTAL
INTRINSIC

VALUE
$0.000 - $3.150 10 2.8 $ 2.41 $ 73
$3.151 - $6.300 590 3.9 4.85 2,889
$6.301 - $9.450 1,168 3.4 8.20 1,816
$9.451 - $12.600 821 6.9 11.07 �  
$12.601 - $15.750 961 2.4 14.39 �  
$15.751 - $18.900 �  �  �  �  
$18.901 - $22.050 �  �  �  �  
$22.051 - $25.200 206 0.1 22.38 �  
$25.201 - $28.350 70 0.3 27.82 �  

3,826 3.8 10.96 $ 4,778

EXERCISABLE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES NUMBER OF AWARDS (SHARES)

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL

LIFE (YEARS)

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EXERCISE

PRICE
($)

TOTAL
INTRINSIC

VALUE
$0.000 - $3.150 10 2.8 $ 2.41 $ 73
$3.151 - $6.300 590 3.9 4.85 2,889
$6.301 - $9.450 1,168 3.4 8.20 1,816
$9.451 - $12.600 761 6.9 10.98 �  
$12.601 - $15.750 908 2.4 14.42 �  
$15.751 - $18.900 �  �  �  �  
$18.901 - $22.050 �  �  �  �  

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 94



$22.051 - $25.200 206 0.1 22.38 �  
$25.201 - $28.350 70 0.3 27.82 �  

3,713 3.8 10.90 $ 4,778
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During the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, Kforce recognized compensation expense of $325 and $66, respectively. As of
December 31, 2007, total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested options was $541. The weighted average period over which this
cost is expected to be recognized is 1.2 years. All unvested awards as of December 31, 2007 are expected to vest in the future.

Stock Appreciation Rights

During January 2007, Kforce granted 469 stock appreciation rights (�SARS�) at an exercise price of $12.66. The SARS vest 100% three years
from the date of issuance. Vesting is accelerated if Kforce�s stock price exceeds the stock price at the date of grant by 30% for a period of 10
trading days or if the Board of Directors has determined that the criteria for acceleration have been met.

The valuation of the SARS was based upon a Black Scholes valuation model utilizing the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0.0%, risk
free rate of 4.5%, expected term of 4.96 years and a volatility factor of 67%. The expected term was comprised of a derived service period of
1.78, which was determined using a lattice model, and a weighted average holding period of 3.18 years. The grant date fair value of the SARS
was $7.53.

There was no activity related to the SARS subsequent to the grant date; therefore, there were 469 SARS outstanding and none were exercisable
as of December 31, 2007. Compensation expense attributable to SARS is being recognized over the derived service period. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, Kforce recorded compensation expense related to the issuance of the SARS of approximately $1,985. As of
December 31, 2007, there was $1,549 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the issuance of the SARS, which will be recognized in
2008.

Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock

Kforce granted 309 units of performance accelerated restricted stock (�PARS�) during the year ended December 31, 2007 to certain members of
senior management. The PARS have a six-year vesting period. Vesting is accelerated if Kforce�s stock price exceeds the stock price at the date of
grant by 50% for a period of ten trading days or if the Board of Directors has determined that the criteria for acceleration have been met.

The valuation of the PARS was determined by its intrinsic value (as if the underlying shares were vested and issued) on the grant date with a
weighted average grant date fair value of $13.33. The fair value of these awards is being amortized over a derived service period of 4.0 years,
which was determined using a lattice model and is subject to any acceleration provisions being met. Compensation expense attributable to PARS
is being recognized over the derived service period.

During 2007, there was a 10 unit forfeiture with a grant date fair value of $13.92. As there was no other activity related to the PARS subsequent
to the grant date, there were 299 PARS outstanding and none were exercisable as of December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31,
2007, Kforce recorded compensation expense related to the issuance of the PARS of approximately $959. As of December 31, 2007, there was
$3,164 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the issuance of the PARS, which will be recognized through 2011.

Restricted Stock

The value of time-based restricted stock (�RS�) is determined by its intrinsic value (as if the underlying shares were vested and issued) on the grant
date.

A summary of restricted stock activity under Kforce�s Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan plans for the three years ended December 31, 2007
is as follows:

SHARES
Outstanding as of December 31, 2004 305
Granted �  
Forfeited �  
Outstanding as of December 31, 2005 305
Granted �  
Vested (298)
Forfeited �  

Edgar Filing: KFORCE INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 96



Outstanding as of December 31, 2006 7
Granted 80
Forfeited (7)

Outstanding as of December 31, 2007 80
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The weighted average grant date fair value of the 80 units and 7 units of restricted stock granted and forfeited, respectively, was $13.33 and
$5.21, respectively. Pursuant to the adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006 under the modified prospective transition method, Kforce
reclassified unearned compensation of $1,094 to additional paid-in capital. Kforce recognized compensation expense of $161, $1,094 and $1,665
during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Unrecognized compensation expense related to the issuance of
restricted stock that were unvested as of December 31, 2007 amounted to $900 and will be recognized over the remaining vesting period on a
pro-rata basis through 2013.

13. Severance Costs

In 2005, Kforce incurred and paid compensation expense of $1,106 for severance costs upon the termination of a named officer. These costs are
a component of selling, general & administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

Kforce leases space and operating assets under operating and capital leases expiring at various dates, with some leases cancelable upon 30 to 90
days of notice given. The leases require payment of taxes, insurance and maintenance costs in addition to rental payments.

Future minimum lease payments, inclusive of accelerated lease payments (Note 10), under non-cancelable capital and operating leases are
summarized as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Capital Leases
Present values of payments $ 2,351 $ 1,537 $ 776 $ 234 $ 123 $ �  
Interest 352 67 38 12 �  �  

Capital Lease Payments $ 2,703 $ 1,604 $ 814 $ 246 $ 123 $ �  

Operating Leases
Facilities $ 9,999 $ 7,453 $ 5,647 $ 4,039 $ 3,152 $ 11,308
Furniture and equipment 330 197 116 45 12 �  

Total Operating Leases $ 10,329 $ 7,650 $ 5,763 $ 4,084 $ 3,164 $ 11,308

Total Leases $ 13,032 $ 9,254 $ 6,577 $ 4,330 $ 3,287 $ 11,308

The present value of the minimum lease payments for capital lease obligations has been classified in other current debt and long-term debt � other
according to their respective maturities. Rental expense under operating leases was $10,780, $10,689 and $10,758 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On September 14, 2001, Kforce executed an agreement for the lease of its new corporate headquarters and consolidation of its Tampa
operations. Significant terms included the prepayment of rent in the amount of $2,200, which is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the
15-year lease term. Kforce is required to make minimum annual lease payments, which escalate from approximately $1,929 to $2,949 over the
lease term. Kforce has applied the provisions of SFAS 13 to account for the lease payments on its headquarters and any other operating leases
with scheduled rent escalations. Accordingly, the total lease payments that will be made over the term of the lease are being recorded as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease as opposed to recording the amount of lease payments actually made. As a result, the
difference between the actual lease payments made and the amount of expense recorded is carried as a liability on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The amount of this liability as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $2,299 and $2,202, respectively.

Purchase Commitments
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Kforce has entered into various commitments including, among others, a system integration and implementation project within our Government
Solutions segment, a resort to host our annual employee incentive trip during 2009, and data center fees for certain of our information
technology applications. As of December 31, 2007, these commitments amounted to approximately $6,894 and are expected to be paid as
follows: $3,409 in 2008; $1,715 in 2009; $915 in 2010; $645 in 2011 and $105 in each of 2012 and 2013.
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Letters of Credit

Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of cash deposits. Kforce currently has letters of credit outstanding for workers�
compensation and other insurance coverage totaling $4,160, and for facility lease deposits totaling approximately $1,890.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of its business, Kforce is, from time to time, threatened with or named as a defendant in various lawsuits, including
discrimination, harassment and other similar allegations. Kforce maintains insurance in such amounts and with such coverage and deductibles as
management believes is reasonable. The principal risks that Kforce insures against are workers� compensation, personal injury, bodily injury,
property damage, professional malpractice, directors and officers, errors and omissions, employment practices liability and fidelity losses.
Kforce is not aware of any litigation that would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows
or financial condition.

Employment Agreements

Kforce has entered into employment agreements with certain executive officers and managers that provide for minimum compensation, salary
and continuation of certain benefits for a six-month to three-year period under certain circumstances. The agreements also provide for a
severance payment of one to three times annual salary and one half to three times average annual bonus if employment is terminated without
good cause by the employer or for good reason by the employee. These agreements contain certain post-employment restrictive covenants.
Kforce�s liability at December 31, 2007 was approximately $35,484 if all of the employees under contract were terminated without good cause
by the employer or the employees resign for good cause following a change in control and $15,995 if all of the employees under contract were
terminated by Kforce without good cause or the employees resign for good cause in the absence of a change of control.

Kforce has not recorded a liability related to the employment agreements as there have been no events that have occurred that would require
payment under the agreements.

15. Reportable Segments

Kforce�s reportable segments are: (i) Technology, (ii) Finance and Accounting, (iii) Health and Life Sciences and (iv) Government Solutions.
This determination was supported by, among others: the existence of segment presidents responsible for the operations of each segment and who
also report directly to our chief operating decision maker, the nature of the segment�s operations and information presented to the Board of
Directors. During this assessment, it was determined that Kforce also reports Flexible billings and Search fees separately by segment, which has
been incorporated into the table below.

Although the Government Solutions segment, which resulted from the 2006 acquisitions of PCCI and Bradson, does not meet quantitative
thresholds for separate segment reporting, management believes that the information would be useful to the readers of our financial statements.

Historically, and through our year ended December 31, 2007, Kforce has generated only sales and gross profit information on a segment basis.
Substantially all operations and long-lived assets are located in the U.S.

The following table provides information concerning the operations of our segments:

TECHNOLOGY
FINANCE AND
ACCOUNTING

HEALTH AND LIFE
SCIENCES

GOVERNMENT
SOLUTIONS TOTAL

2007
Net service revenues
Flexible billings $ 488,968 $ 189,824 $ 218,293 $ 61,764 $ 958,849
Search fees 29,820 43,301 4,945 �  78,066

Total revenue $ 518,788 $ 233,125 $ 223,238 $ 61,764 $ 1,036,915
Gross profit $ 169,450 $ 106,577 $ 72,321 $ 23,995 $ 372,343
2006
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Net service revenues
Flexible billings $ 430,731 $ 208,815 $ 195,162 $ 32,877 $ 867,585
Search fees 25,638 40,688 4,537 �  70,863

Total revenue $ 456,369 $ 249,503 $ 199,699 $ 32,877 $ 938,448
Gross profit $ 144,753 $ 108,208 $ 62,617 $ 10,521 $ 326,099
2005
Net service revenues
Flexible billings $ 352,743 $ 211,873 $ 182,775 �  $ 747,391
Search fees 18,037 31,834 5,003 �  54,874

Total revenue $ 370,780 $ 243,707 $ 187,778 �  $ 802,265
Gross profit $ 109,856 $ 93,310 $ 56,823 �  $ 259,989
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16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

QUARTER ENDED
MAR 31 JUN 30 SEPT 30 DEC 31

2007
Net service revenues $ 252,308 $ 259,924 $ 262,060 $ 262,623
Gross profit 88,441 94,118 96,277 93,507
Net income 8,795 10,577 11,024 9,971
Net earnings per share-basic $ .21 $ .26 $ .27 $ .24
Net earnings per share-diluted $ .21 $ .25 $ .26 $ .24
2006
Net service revenues $ 222,298 $ 234,399 $ 238,700 $ 243,051
Gross profit 74,002 80,927 85,401 85,769
Net income 6,057 8,365 8,842 9,255
Net earnings per share-basic $ .15 $ .21 $ .22 $ .23
Net earnings per share-diluted $ .15 $ .20 $ .21 $ .22
During the fourth quarter of 2007, Kforce eliminated an estimated liability for unclaimed property of $870, which related to Kforce�s 2004
acquisition of Hall Kinion and was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statements of operations.

17. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the year ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Income taxes paid (received), net $ 15,725 $ 612 $ (29)
Interest, net 5,137 3,689 1,888
Non-Cash Transaction Information:
Cash flow hedge (expense), net of taxes �  �  (37)
Tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions of stock options and restricted stock 1,530 5,700 341
Common Stock Transactions:
Employee stock purchase plan 1,098 1,597 961
Issuance of stock in an acquisition �  5,202 18,324
Software acquired under financing agreement �  �  1,799
Equipment acquired under capital lease 3,397 2,736 3,589
Non-cash gain on sale of Board Network �  �  74
Settlement of acquisition escrow � adjustment to goodwill 9,648 �  �  
Cash used in connection with acquisitions, net:
Transaction costs $ 31 $ 127,406 $ 277
Escrow funds not included in purchase price �  10,000 �  
Payment of acquired business bank line of credit �  �  2,467
Escrow refund (352) �  �  
Cash received in acquisition �  (906) �  
Transaction costs � Hall Kinion tax adjustments (18) �  58
Cash overdraft received in acquisition �  232 101

$ (339) $ 136,732 $ 2,903
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act (the �Evaluation�), as of the end of the period covered
by this report, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) and Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�), of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act (�Disclosure Controls�).
Based on the Evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that these controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission�s rules and forms. These disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the company in
the reports that it files or submits is accumulated and communicated to management, including the principal executive officer and the principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

There has not been any change in our internal controls over financial reporting identified in connection with the Evaluation that occurred during
the quarter ended December 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, those controls.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

CEO and CFO Certifications

Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 are the Certifications of the CEO and the CFO, respectively. The Certifications are required in accordance with
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the �Section 302 Certifications�). This Item of this report, which you are currently reading, is the
information concerning the Evaluation referred to in the Section 302 Certifications and this information should be read in conjunction with the
Section 302 Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Kforce is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Kforce�s internal
control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to Kforce�s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective
can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Kforce management assessed the effectiveness of Kforce�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control � Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2007, Kforce�s internal control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Kforce�s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit report on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report is presented in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by Item 10 relating to our directors, executive officers and corporate governance is incorporated herein by reference to
our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days of December 31, 2007.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by Item 11 relating to executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of December 31, 2007.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by Item 12 relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholders
matters is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of December 31, 2007.

Information regarding equity compensation plans required by this item is included in Item 5 of Part II of this report and is incorporated into this
item by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
The information required by Item 13 relating to certain relationships and related transactions and director independence is incorporated herein by
reference to our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days of December 31, 2007.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by Item 14 relating to principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy
statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of
December 31, 2007.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule. The consolidated financial statement schedule of Kforce is included in Part IV of this report on
the page indicated by the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule presented below. The independent auditors� report as
presented on page 31 of this report applies to the consolidated financial statement schedule. This financial statement schedule should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, and related notes thereto of Kforce.

Schedules not listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule have been omitted because they are not applicable, not
required, or the information required to be set forth therein is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

2. Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the Exhibits Index are incorporated by reference into this Item 15(b) and are a part of this report.
KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
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SCHEDULE II

KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING

ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

(in thousands)

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E

DESCRIPTION
BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF

CHARGED TO
COSTS

AND

EXPENSES
(RECOVERY)

CHARGED

TO OTHER
ACCOUNTS (a) DEDUCTIONS (b)

BALANCE AT

END OF
PERIOD

Allowance for doubtful accounts and fallouts 2005 $ 6,268 $ 38 $ 1,967 $ (3,174) $ 5,099
2006 5,099 (1,721) 2,256 (2,919) 2,715
2007 2,715 1,214 102 (1,029) 3,002

(a) Charged to other accounts includes the provision for fallouts of search placements that has been deducted from net service revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(b) Deductions include write-offs of uncollectible accounts receivable and fallouts of search placements that have been charged against the
allowance for doubtful accounts and fallouts.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

KFORCE INC.

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ DAVID L. DUNKEL
David L. Dunkel

Chairman of the Board,

Chief Executive Officer and Director
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ DAVID L. DUNKEL
David L. Dunkel

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ JOSEPH J. LIBERATORE
Joseph J. Liberatore

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ SARA R. NICHOLS
Sara R. Nichols

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ JOHN N. ALLRED
John N. Allred

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ W.R. CAREY, JR.
W.R. Carey, Jr.

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ RICHARD M. COCCHIARO
Richard M. Cocchiaro

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ MARK F. FURLONG
Mark F. Furlong

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ ELAINE D. ROSEN
Elaine D. Rosen

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ A. GORDON TUNSTALL
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A. Gordon Tunstall
Director
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Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ RALPH E. STRUZZIERO
Ralph E. Struzziero

Director

Date: February 27, 2008 By: /s/ HOWARD W. SUTTER
Howard W. Sutter

Vice Chairman, Vice President and Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
  3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-1

(File No. 33-91738) filed with the SEC on May 9, 1996.

  3.1a Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form
S-4/A (File No. 333-111566) filed with the SEC on February 9, 2004, as amended.

  3.1b Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form
S-4/A (File No. 333-111566) filed with the SEC on February 9, 2004, as amended.

  3.1c Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form
S-4/A (File No. 333-111566) filed with the SEC on February 9, 2004, as amended.

  3.1d Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on May 17, 2000.

  3.1e Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on March 29, 2002.

  3.2 Amended & Restated Bylaws, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed
with the SEC on February 7, 2007.

  4.1 Rights Agreement, dated October 28, 1998, between Romac International, Inc. and State Street Bank and Trust Company as Rights
Agent, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058), filed with the SEC on October
29, 1998.

  4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2000, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on November 3, 2000.

  4.3 Form of Stock Certificate, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-03393)
filed with the SEC on May 9, 1996.

  9.1 Form of Voting Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2003, by and between the Registrant and certain stockholders of Hall, Kinion &
Associates, Inc., incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-111566) filed with
the SEC on December 24, 2003, as amended.

  9.2 Form of Voting Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2003, by and between Hall Kinion & Associates, Inc. and certain stockholders
of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-111566) filed with
the SEC on December 24, 2003, as amended.

10.1 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as October 2, 2006, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on October 3, 2006.

10.2 Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2006, between the Registrant and David L. Dunkel, incorporated by reference to
the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2007.

10.3 Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2006, between the Registrant and William L. Sanders, incorporated by reference
to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2007.

10.4 Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2006, between the Registrant and Joseph J. Liberatore, incorporated by reference
to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2007.

10.5 Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2006, between the Registrant and Michael Ettore, incorporated by reference to the
Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2007.

10.6 Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2006, between the Registrant and Steven McMahan, incorporated by reference to
the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2007.
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10.7 Kforce Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 000-26058) filed with the SEC on March 7, 2007.

21 List of Subsidiaries.

23 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer of Kforce Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer of Kforce Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer of Kforce Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer of Kforce Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 2350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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